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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
" EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed
to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks
of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market
more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on
GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be
a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, make no representation as to
its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors of Asian Capital
Resources (Holdings) Limited collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited for the purpose of giving information with
regard to Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited.
The directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief:
(1) the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading;
(2) there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all
opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after
due and careful consideration and are founded on bases
and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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| am pleased to present the annual results of Asian Capital
" Resources (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

The year of 2018 has been unstable and complicated for
the global economy as a whole. There was a sharp drop-
off in world trade growth, which fell from over 5% at the
beginning of 2018 to nearly zero at the end. These risks
point to the increasing vulnerability of the global economy
to further shocks. While China’s economic growth were
threatened by the ongoing Sino-US trade conflicts and
active deleveraging by the Chinese government. The Group
had experienced a challenging 12 months in FY2018
with China’s economy expanded only by 6.6% which
is the lowest growth rate experienced since 1990. With
anticipated escalation in trade conflicts, a contraction in
world trade could drag down the global economy even
more. At the same time, the combined effects of rising
interest rates and surging equity and commodity market
volatility mean that financial conditions worldwide are
tightening.

China’s direct investment in North America and Europe
slumped almost three quarters in 2018 to a six-year low
of US$30 billion, the main reasons for such a decrease
were foreign regulators blockage of Chinese investments
due to heightened nationalism scrutiny and the China’s
own stringent regulations towards the outbound RMB
activities. In addition, the newly established rules in regards
of asset management has also hindered the private equity
industry as a whole in China. However, the growing crop
of international fund houses looking to plant flags or
deepen existing roots in China has signaled that there are
long term growth opportunities. This is also supported
from the evidence of the growing list of firms setting up
wholly foreign-owned enterprises (WFOEs) launching
products targeting onshore high net worth individuals and
institutional investors. This activity has simply exacerbated
the human capital pressures arising from the relative
scarcity of talent. The significant challenge of attracting,
hiring and retaining the right individuals, across the front-
office and infrastructure positions, continues to be one
of the big barriers to firms being able to capitalise on the
business potential onshore. The Group has been able to
retain and grow in the human capital aspect whereby we
have strategized the business to take advantage of the
long-term growth in the industry.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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The prospect of 2019 might be clouded by the uncertainties
of the Sino-US trade negotiations, exchange rate of
Renminbi, to cope with the challenging outlook for the
ongoing Chinese and global economic growth and mitigate
the risks involved, the Group will continue to exert rigorous
control over its business operations and strategies. The
Board’s responsibility remains to produce and deliver
sustainable value to shareholders, as it guides the Group
through these challenging market conditions.

During the past year, there was a increase in the turnover
of the Group for from HK$22,050,000 of 2017 to
HK$25,800,000 of 2018 and the loss for the year increased
from approximate HK$41,000,000 of 2017 to approximate
HK$57,383,000 of 2018. The loss is attributable to the
slowdown of the Group’s business of corporate consulting
and management services in the financial services sector
due to the restrictive China regulatory environment and the
unstable and complicated for the global economy.

For the year under review the Company has been focused
on actively developing and expanding businesses in the
private equity services which includes value added services
of corporate consulting & management services.

The Group has experienced a difficult and challenging year
due to the stringent rules and regulations implemented
by the China’s regulatory bodies targeting the private
equity industry and capital flows as part of the broader
efforts to reduce financial risks within the Chinese financial
markets. As a result, the Group had experienced difficulty
in increasing the asset under management for the Group’s
private equity business; nevertheless the Group was able
to navigate through this challenging year and remained
stable by carrying out private equity value added services
and activities. The Group’s intangible asset was impaired
due to the uncertainty associated with the private equity
asset management revenue caused by the new regulatory
regime. Going forward the board remains confident that the
Company will continue with its stable performance.
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The Board views that for the short-term we would be

" operating in the similar challenging regulatory environment

and volatile economic environment; however, China’s
outbound M&A activity and onshore private equity is
expected to grow in the longer term with the easing of
the regulations, as evident by the increasing number of
international fund houses sharing the same view and
entering the Chinese domestic market.

In addition, one of the Group’s offshore private equity
investment is a Singapore exempt real estate income
management which has been developing but due the
unstable global market it has been slow in fruition.
The invested company is a real estate manager,
whose business includes wholesale property funds to
sophisticated investors, targeted primarily in selected
commercial and residential sectors in Europe and Asia.

The Group’s other core business of private equity business
management and consultancy services has been emerging.
With the current Chinese economy experiencing instability
it has seen an increase in demand for the Group’s private
equity business management and consultancy services.
There has been consolidation in many sectors and many
firms are in need of restructuring. With the ongoing trade
war, the Directors are of the view that the Group would gain
additional exposure to the trade industry and the Group is
currently positioning to provide more service solutions to its
existing and potential clients.

The Group will continue to adopt prudent and flexible
business strategies and adjust to market and environmental
changes accordingly in the expansion of its customer
base and business. The Group will also continue to further
improve its operating cost efficiency and effectiveness by
optimisation of system and staff resources, streamlining the
support services and making use of synergies with business
partners.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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In addition, apart from the aforementioned operations,
the Group continues to research, develop and explore
investment opportunities which are strategic to its business
operations and which will contribute significantly to the
return of the Company’s shareholders.

Together with the experiences of the Board, the Group
has the leadership and track record to achieve and create
operational added value as well as sustainable value for the
management and private equity services.

On behalf of the Board, we would also like to take this
opportunity to thank the Group’s clients, suppliers,
vendors, banks business partners, consultants and
shareholders for their support and trust generously given
to the Group. The Board also expresses gratitude to the
management and staff for their work and dedication during
the past years.

Xie Xuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

" Revenue and loss attributable to shareholders

The total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 was approximately HK$25,800,000 (2017:
HK$22,050,000) which increased by approximately 17% as
compared to that of the previous financial year.

The increase in total revenue is attributed to the increase
of the management services provided. The audited
consolidated loss for the year ended 31 December 2018
was approximately HK$57,383,000 as compared with the
loss of corresponding period last year of HK$41,100,000.
The increase was mainly attributed to impairment for
the Groups Goodwill of approximately HK$45,852,000,
as reported in note 14 of the consolidated financial
statements.

Financial cost

The financial cost of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 was approximately HK$1,156,000 (2017:
HK$1,224,000) which had decreased by approximately
5.56% as compared to that of the same period of last year.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s
borrowing consists of amounts due to associates of
HK$1,361,000, an amount due to the Company’s
substantial shareholder of HK$17,305,000, an amount
due to a director of HK$2,717,000, and obligations
under finance lease of HK$525,000. The Group had a
cash balance of approximately HK$6,989,000 (2017:
HK$11,486,000).

The Group continues to adopt a prudent treasury policy
to maintain its cash balance either in Hong Kong Dollars,
or in the local currencies of the operating subsidiaries,
maintaining a minimum exposure to foreign exchange risks.

The issued share capital of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 was HK$176,182,556, which was the
same with end of December 2017.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gearing ratio

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the gearing ratio of
the Group, expressed as a percentage of net debt divided
by the total capital plus net debt, was 117.59% (2017:
83.84%).

Employee and remuneration policies

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
employed a total of 29 employees (as at 31 December
2017: 41), of which 3 were located in Hong Kong,
25 were located in the PRC and the remaining 1 in USA.
The Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the
prevailing market practices and formulated on the basis of
performance and experience of the employees. The salary
and related benefits of the employees are rewarded on a
performance related basis and the general remuneration
structure of the Group is subject to review annually.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies

Deregistration and winding-up of various subsidiaries
in the Group

The Board has resolved that, in order to reduce the
operating costs of the Group, those subsidiaries within
the Group which no longer add value to, nor generate any
income attributable to the Group, should be deregistered,
or voluntarily wound up.

The subsidiary which is currently in the deregistration
process is: Sinobase Asia Limited.

Those subsidiaries which are currently being voluntarily
wound up are: Asian Information Investment Consulting
Limited, BuyCollection.com Limited, and Myhome Network
Limited.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

" During the past year, there was a increase in the

turnover of the group for from HK$22,050,000 of 2017 to
HK$25,800,000 of 2018 and the loss for the year increased
from approximate HK$41,100,000 of 2017 to approximate
HK$57,383,000 of 2018. The loss is attributable to the
slowdown of the Group’s business of corporate consulting
and management services in the financial services sector
due to the restrictive China regulatory environment and the
unstable and complicated for the global economy

For the year under review the Company has been focused
on actively developing and expanding businesses in the
private equity services which includes value added services
of corporate consulting & management services.

The Group has experienced a difficult and challenging year
due to the stringent rules and regulations implemented
by the China’s regulatory bodies targeting the private
equity industry and capital flows as part of the broader
efforts to reduce financial risks within the Chinese financial
markets. As a result, the Group had experienced difficulty
in increasing the asset under management for the Group’s
private equity business, nevertheless the Group was able
navigate through this challenging year and remained stable
by carrying out private equity value added services and
activities. Going forward the board remains confident that
the Company will continue with its stable performance.

The Board views that for the short-term we would be
operating in the similar challenging regulatory environment
and volatile economic environment; however, China’s
outbound M&A activity and onshore private equity is
expected to grow in the longer term with the easing of
the regulations, as evident by the increasing number of
international fund houses sharing the same view and
entering the Chinese domestic market.

In addition, one of the Group’s offshore private equity
investment is a Singapore exempt real estate income
management which has been developing but due the
unstable global market it has been slow in fruition.
The invested company is a real estate manager,
whose business includes wholesale property funds to
sophisticated investors, targeted primarily in selected
commercial and residential sectors in Europe and Asia.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s other core business of private equity business
management and consultancy services has been emerging.
With the current Chinese economy experiencing instability
it has seen an increase in demand for the Group’s private
equity business management and consultancy services.
There has been consolidation in many sectors and many
firms are in need of restructuring. With the ongoing trade
war, the Directors are of the view that the Group would gain
additional exposure to the trade industry and the Group is
currently positioning to provide more service solutions to its
existing and potential clients.

The Group will continue to adopt prudent and flexible
business strategies and adjust to market and environmental
changes accordingly in the expansion of its customer
base and business. The Group will also continue to further
improve its operating cost efficiency and effectiveness by
optimisation of system and staff resources, streamlining the
support services and making use of synergies with business
partners.

In addition, apart from the aforementioned operations,
the Group continues to research, develop and explore
investment opportunities which are strategic to its business
operations and which will contribute significantly to the
return of the Company’s shareholders.

Together with the experiences of the Board, the Group
has the leadership and track record to achieve and create
operational added value as well as sustainable value for the
management and private equity services.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

* Mr. Xie Xuan

Chairman

Mr. Xie, aged 49, joined the Group in 2002. Mr. Xie holds
directorships in various subsidiaries of the Group. Before
joining the Group he has over 19 years of successful
investment and management experience in the areas of
property and logistics in the People’s Republic of China. He
graduated from Jinan University, the PRC with a degree in
International Economics.

Mr. Qiu Yue

Mr. Qiu, aged 49, joined the Group in October 2008. Mr.
Qiu graduated from Zhongshan University, the People’s
Republic of China in 1991, with a Bachelor of Arts degree.
Mr. Qiu has worked in the advertising business for more
than 12 years and was the general manager of Guangzhou
Wavecom Communication and Advertising Limited from
1992 to 2006.

Dr. Feng Ke

Dr. Feng, aged 47, joined the Group in October 2008. Dr.
Feng holds a Ph.D. in Economics from Peking University,
People’s Republic of China. He is currently the deputy
director of Peking University’s Center for Financial
Innovation and Development. Dr. Feng currently serves as
an independent non-executive director of China Huirong
Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 01290) and
Zhuguang Holdings Group Company Limited (stock code:
01176).

Mr. Huang Haitao

(appointed on 09/08/2018)

Mr. Huang aged 40, has more than 18 years of large-
scale real estate projects engineering construction
and management experience. In recent years, he has
been involved in investment and financing and resource
integration practices in industrial investment.

Mr. Liao Haifei

(appointed on 09/08/2018)

Mr. Liao aged 40, has more than 17 years of experience
in commercial and industrial real estate, with especial
focus on commercial real estate project market research,
planning and positioning, business resource development,
marketing strategy formulation and implementation,
marketing promotion, operation management planning and
other frontline practices. He has in depth involvement in
over 15 projects with aggregated floor area of more than
10 million square meters. He is also experienced in pre-
admission evaluation and post-investment management of
domestic pan-entertainment and Internet business.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wu Jixue

Mr. Wu, aged 73, holds a Master degree in Economics. He
is currently a professor, guest lecturer and visiting scholar
at a number of colleges and universities in the PRC and
abroad. He has published more than 262 papers and 18
books in the areas of economics, finance and management.

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

Mr. Zheng, aged 60, was graduated from the Department
of Economic of Renmin University of China with a Master
Degree in 1987. Currently Mr. Zheng is a researcher of
the Institute of Economics of the Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences and a doctoral student supervisor of
the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences. Mr. Zheng’s field of research mainly covers the
areas in respect of microeconomics, comparative study
of corporate system, theory of corporate governance,
and revolution of state enterprises. Meanwhile, Mr. Zheng
is currently the Executive Vice-Editor-in-Chief and the
director of editorial office of Economic Research Journal
(“CALEITFT)”), which is a leading PRC journal in economic
theory research published by the Institute of Economics of
Chinese Academy of Social Science.

Dr. Wang Yi

Dr. Wang Yi (E#k), male, was born in 1970 in Xinyang City,
Henan Province. He serves as an associate professor,
associate editor and tutor of Master’s degree students
for Beijing Technology and Business University, and the
director of Journal of Beijing Technology and Business
University (Social Sciences). Dr. Wang graduated from
Department of Economics and Business Administration,
Beijing Normal University with a doctoral degree in
Management in 2009; obtained a master’s degree
in Economics from the School of Economics and
Management of Beijing Institute of Technology in 2004
and a Bachelor’s degree in business management from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law in 1995.
His main research areas include business management,
Labour Economics, Economics of Education. Dr. Wang
currently serves as a member of council of China Labour
Economics Association (FBl&5 &4 E2EE) China of
Education Association (FBI# 5 & EE29) and China’s
Disabled Persons’ Federation, respectively. He also holds
five national-and provincial/ministry-level projects and has
published about 20 papers in CSSCI academic journals.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

- COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ying Yuk Sim

Ms. Ying has over 20 years of experience in accounting,
financial control, corporate finance and personal financial
planning. She had previously served in a number of
Hong Kong listed companies and private companies with
investment in China, in the fields of banking, construction,
trading and manufacturing, property management and
insurance company. Ms. Ying holds a Master Degree
in Business Administration from Manchester Business
School, University of Manchester. In addition, she is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

SENIOR ACCOUNTANT

Mr. Kong Yeuk Hon, John

Mr. Kong, born in 1959 Hong Kong, joined the Group
in 2005. Mr. Kong holds a Master of Science Degree in
Applied Accounting and Finance from the Baptist University
of Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kong has over
12 years of experience in commercial accounting field.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit their
report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. An
analysis of the Group’s revenue and loss before taxation for
the year ended 31 December 2018 by principal activities is
as follows:

EEERE

ARAEE([EFENERESFS
ARARBRAEEBEE_T—\F+
=t BLEFEZEEZMH®RE -

wE
—_HA

REBEXBRBEISZ2EEST

ARRIZEBEHRREER - BHAKEB
RAIEBEBZABINGE AP BRE
MaEs2 - AEBH#HE T N\F+ - H
ST -HLEFERETEXERE D 2 Wt kR
BAEEIFMT

Profit/(loss)

before
Revenue taxation
prBiRTERR,
W 25 (E518)
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFH#IT TF#ET
By Principal activities: BREZXBKED
Management and consultancy B2 R ERREKRA
service income 12,257 (52,263)
Media Services income BB AR TS A 10,974 (3,196)
Internet development and maintenance & Bf48 5 %
service income #EERR S 2,569 (795)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and loss before taxation
for the year ended 31 December 2018 by geographical
areas is as follows:

AEEBE_T-N\F+_A=1+—HLF
Bzl 2 e MR ATEEA T T -

Profit/(loss)

before
Revenue taxation
Bt At Fl,
W2k (B548)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
By geographical areas i =E o
PRC s 25,750 (57,244)
HK 55 50 (8)
25,800 (57,292)
TMEE (=) BRAR] - \FER
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

~ The loss for the Group for the year ended 31 December

2018 and the financial position of the Group at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
49 to 163 of this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 164.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
13 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year
attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers
are as follows:

EERER
AEBEHZE-_ZT-N\F+_A=+—HBLHF
EZEBEANEBRZA ZMERREN A
FREIOE163B 2B W B HE -

EETEARBHE_ZT-N\F+_A
=t+t—BLEFERR(ZZE—1tF: &) -

MBERBIE
AEERBERAMRFEZEBAREESR
BEHETIHNE164E -

Y% - BEXRRAE
REBAFRZNE  BERREZBHE
HREG A HREMES

EREFRRMUER
AEBEEES R MEFEAHE RREA
EASLWT :

2018 2017
ZT-N\FE —T—+F
Sales HE
The largest customer NS 44.15% 26.12%
Five largest customers combined AAREAR 92.65% 84.44%
Purchases A8
The largest supplier RAEIER 54.30% -
Five largest suppliers combined AAEEEET 95.30% -

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the company’s share capital) had an interest in the
major suppliers or customers stated above.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 21 December 2018 the Company, pursuant to the
acquisition agreement as described in the Company’s
circular dated 10 September 2014, issued in aggregate
HK$111,237,682 of zero-coupon convertible bonds
convertible at the initial Conversion Price of HK$0.45
per Share with 24-month maturity, to the Vendors or its
nominees.

As at 31 December 2018 there were outstanding and
in issue in aggregate HK$111,237,682 of zero-coupon
convertible bonds convertible at the initial Conversion Price
of HK$0.45 per Share with 24-month maturity.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association or the laws of
the Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Based on information which is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as
at the latest practicable date prior to the issuance of this
annual report, the Directors can confirm that at least 25%
of the Company’s total listed issued share capital has at all
times been held by the public, as required by Rule 11.23 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year is set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements and the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

EEERE

iRk ESH

RZZE—NE+-_A=+—B8  A2FRE
ARRIHBMAZZT—NFNLA+HZBRA
Mo WERE  MEAEREARITASE
111,237,6828 7T & H1 — + U@ A £ ¥ P 88 ik
EERARN0.458 maih r TR AR ES -

R-Z—-NEFE+-A=+—8 D%TELE
111,237,682/8 7t AHI — U@ A & #1208k
EFRRMN04SBTHBR T EABRRES
BRI o

BABEEE

AR ZARBHERBUSHEHE (KD
RIREM AR L AT AR 2 RIARER )% )30 455 PR B
ERERIATE  READARRLIAR
BRRE2HEHB -

BBE - HENED EhEs

RBEE_ZFT-N\F+_A=1T—"HILFE
W ARBIREEAMBRARMERE - 4
EXBERARBEA EHES °

ABRBAFRQELTERZEREE

RAFRTEMZZEBERATAE - B
RARBEMRBZARER  UERHES
sl ESRBARALI—EFELARAZE
HEMBEITRAZED25% + HFEGEME™
FRAIZE1 2318 ZHE °

i
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

~ As at 31 December 2018, the Company has no reserves

available for distribution to shareholders (2017: Nil) in
accordance with the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands
and the Company’s articles of association.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman)

Mr. Qiu Yue

Dr. Feng Ke

Mr. Huang Haitao (appointed on 09/08/2018)
Mr. Liao Haifei (appointed on 09/08/2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Jixue

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

Dr. Wang Yi

In accordance with Article 87(1) and 86(3) of the articles
of association of the Company Mr. Qiu Yue, Dr. Feng Ke,
Mr. Huang Haitao and Mr. Liao Haifei shall retire from office
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. The retiring Directors, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re- election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors to be proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
has an unexpired service contract that is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensations.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, none of the directors had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group was entered into or subsisted during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Particulars of retirement benefit schemes are set out in note
9 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(A)

Interests and short positions of the Directors in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares,
or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571, (“SFO”)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) contained in the GEM Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

EEERE

EEEH
R BT REEE AR RS E
RAEMEABA LB ERRITRAL -

BHKEFITE
BAEHGEZFBHNGE M BEREME

Qo

i E

(A)

ESNFATRAEBEEZRE - A
Bzt R iR % R RIRE

R-ZE-NF+_A=+—H XRQF
EZRITRERNA LR REEBEE
(EEREFLBERI(TEZRIAE
fB]) - BETIEEXVER) 2 tn - 18
B REHFFHEE @@QAREESLME
EBIEXVERET7 285 BRI & AR A A) e Bt
Rz Em AR (BEREES L
BIEPIZFEE BN E R 21
sMAR) ¢ HO)AREESF LB K
PIE 352K BN Z IKFTIEERRARZ
ez MORR ¢ (o) ARIEGEM LR Al
FELMETAESETESR S ZF
EFRI(TRESTR D e AR A R
Pz s RoRkBIAT
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Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

(i) Long Positions in the Ordinary Shares of
HKS$0.10 each (the “Shares”) of the Company

() RELGTEREEA10ETZEE
BTG 1)ZIFE

Number of issued Shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FRERTRHNE - ShRERKE

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued Shares
as at 31 December
Through 2018
Directly Spouse or Through EING A
beneficially  minor children controlled Beneficiary “5-0\%
owned BREES corporation of a trust Total +=A=+-HZ
ERERHE FREYE  EETHER fERERHA @t ERARHENM
Directors £Z
Mr. Xie Xuan HERE - - 518,014,782 - 518,014,782 29.40%
(Note 1)
(1)
Mr. Qiu Yue il 15,430,000 - 18,620,436 - 34,050,436 1.98%
(Note 2)
(HE2)

Note 1: The controlled corporation is Glamour House ekt : 5% X ¥ R £ Glamour
Limited, which is accustomed to acting in House Limited * 3% A 7] 1&
accordance with Mr. Xie Xuan’s instructions MR EH M — % E B kA
who is its sole director, which is the beneficial ER1TE - W H A Asian
owner as to 67.18% of Asian Dynamics Dynamics International
International Limited. Limited Z 67.18% 2 & = #&

Note 2: The controlled corporation is Lucky Peace BMi3¥2 © 3% % %% B A& Lucky Peace
Limited, which is incorporated in Samoa, and Limited @ 7 & £ 20 5% fit A%
which is 100% wholly-owned by Mr. Qiu Yue. N MEEEESER

100% °
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December br EXFI#HESEN  RZZE—N\F+=

2018, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including any interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Annual Report 2018

A=1t—8  ARBEERNITHRAEM
BERARARREEAEBEE(EER
B MHEGOIEXVELD) 2By - 18R
B kBT RBAREES KPR K
PIZEXVERFT7 87 BPA & AN A B M B2
reBasoXR (BRREESMAE
Pl 3% GRS AR A E R A 21
BBmIORR)  RAREBES A E K
DI 352 1R FLH N Z KA s B iR 2
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RAINRBR P Z EEIAR ©



(B)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Interests and short positions of the Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to
the Directors or chief executive of the Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed
or taken to have, an interest or short position in the

Shares and

underlying Shares which would fall to

be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, were as

follows:

(i) Long Positions in the Shares

(B)

EEERE

ERRFENRAATZKRG - HEARG R
EHZEERXA

RZZE-NF+-_A=+—H AR
BIEFHTHAEMA - ATAL(R
NEEFHITHARRIN) RN K& E
RO THES R RAEEERR
BES RS GO EXVEE2 %37 B A
AARRREZ EESOXBT

() RRHZHFE

Percentage of

the Company’s

issued Shares

as at

31 December 2018

1545 4F

Number of R-B-N\E

Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares +ZH=+-HZ2

BRREH St BH%E EETRHESN

Glamour House Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 518,014,782 29.40%
(Note 1)

—RAX AR ER (1)

Asian Dynamics International Limited ~ Beneficial owner 517,896,132 29.39%
BREBA

Century Field Limited Beneficial owner 276,306,666 15.68%
BaBAA

Note 1: The controlled corporation is Asian Dynamics Mzt 32z 2 & 5 @ A Asian

International Limited, which is beneficially
owned as to 67.18% by Glamour House
Limited.

Dynamics International
Limited * A Glamour House
Limited B = #H67.18% °
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

(i) Long Positions in the Underlying Shares
Nil

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018,
the Directors of the Company were not aware of
any other person (other than the Directors and the
Supervisors of the Company) who had an interest and
short position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO and/
or were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more
of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures in the Company or any other body
corporate granted to any Directors or their respective
spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
spouse or minor children to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates had an interest
in a business which competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group nor any
conflicts of interest which has or may have with the Group.

MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDER

As far as the Directors are aware of, other than Asian
Dynamics International Limited, Glamour House Limited
and Mr. Xie Xuan, there was no other person as at 31
December 2018 who was directly or indirectly interested in
5% or more of the shares then in issue of the Company and
who was able, as a practicable matter, to direct or influence
the management of the Company.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have
been audited by CHENG & CHENG LIMITED. CHENG
& CHENG LIMITED retired and offers themselves for re-
appointment as auditor of the Company at the next annual
general meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board

Xie Xuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining

" a high standard of corporate governance. The Board

recognises that such commitment is essential in upholding
the accountability and transparency and to achieve a
balance of interests between the shareholders, customers,
creditors, employees as well as other stakeholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

To ensure compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules, the Board will continue to monitor and revise
the Company code to bring our corporate governance
practices in line with the changes in the environment and
requirements of the Code. In the opinion of the Directors,
the Company has complied with all the provisions of the
Code, for the year ended 31 December 2018, except:

()  under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing. The Company has
set out in written terms the responsibilities between
the chairman and chief executive officer. At present,
Mr. Xie Xuan, the chairman of the Company, also
undertakes the responsibilities of the chief executive
officer until a replacement for the chief executive
officer is found. The Company considers that under
the supervision of its Board and its Independent Non-
executive Directors, a balancing mechanism exists so
that the interests of the shareholders are adequately
and fairly represented.

(i) under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term and subject to re-election. None of the
existing Non-executive Directors of the Company
are appointed for a specific term. This constitutes
a deviation from the code provision. However, all
the Non-executive Directors of the Company are
subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings pursuant to the articles of association of the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of
dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied
with all the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended
31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for managing the Company on
behalf of the shareholders. The Board is of the view that
it is the Directors’ responsibility to create value for the
shareholders as a whole and safeguard the best interests
of the Company and the shareholders by discharging its
duties in a dedicated, diligent and prudent manner on the
principle of good faith.

The Board comprises a total of eight Directors, with five
executive Directors, namely Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman), Mr.
Qiu Yue, Dr. Feng Ke, Mr. Huang Haitao and Mr. Liao Haifei;
and three independent non-executive Directors namely Mr.
Wu Jixue, Mr. Zheng Hongliang, and Dr. Wang Yi. They are
professionals in different areas and provide independent
opinions based on their expertise.

BOARD PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS
Proposed regular Board meeting dates for a year are
informed to each Director at the beginning of the year.
Formal notice of at least 14 days will be given in respect of
a regular meeting. For special board meeting, reasonable
notice will be given. Directors participated, either in person
or through other electronic means of communication in the
Board meetings. The Board of Directors meets regularly at
least 4 times a year. The Directors participated in person
or through other means of communication. All notices
of board meetings were given to all Directors, who were
given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
discussion. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis
of major changes that may affect the Group’s businesses,
including relevant rules and regulations. Directors can also
seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary. Minutes of
each board meeting will be kept and are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on request by any Director.
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DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

- The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in

respect of the legal action against the Directors.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
The Company has established formal, considered and
transparent procedures for the appointment of new
directors. The procedures and process of appointment,
re-election and removal of directors are laid down in the
Company’s Articles of Association. According to the
Company’s Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that notwithstanding anything
herein, the chairman of the Board shall not, whilst holding
such office, be subject to retirement by rotation or be
taken into account in determining the number of Directors
to retire in each year. Accordingly, as at the date of this
report, Mr. Xie Xuan, being the chairman of the Company,
is not subject to retirement by rotation. Other relevant
Articles state that all Directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject to re-election by shareholders
at their first annual general meeting after appointment, a
retired Director shall be eligible for re-election. All Directors
should retire by rotation at least once every three years. The
nomination committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the year, 8 Board meetings and 1 annual general
meeting (“AGM”) were held. Details of the attendance of the
Directors are as follows.
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Board of Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual general
Directors EE Directors Committee Committee Committee meeting
Ezg EREEE REEEE FWEEE REEEXE

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman) HEEE(FE) 6/7 N/ATER 1 11 0/
Mr. Qiu Yue il 6/7 N/ARE N/ATE A N/ATNER 0N
Dr. Feng Ke HEHEL 5/7 N/ATER N/ARER N/ATER 1/1
Mr. Huang Haitao BEELE 4/4 N/ATER N/ATEH N/ATE R 0/0
Mr. Liao Haifei BEREE 4/4 N/ATEF N/ATER N/ATER 0/0

Mr. Huang Haitao and Mr. Liao Haifei were appointed on 09/08/2018

BEEBREREEREEIN T \F/\ANREEE

Independent Non-Executive BUIEHTEE

Director
Mr. Wu Jixue THEELE 717 4/4 N/ATNER 11 01
Mr. Zheng Hongliang AR e 5/7 2/4 1/1 1/1 01
Dr. Wang Yi TéEt /7 4/4 il N/ATER 0/1
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY EESZTILEE

The Board adopts a board diversity policy and discusses
all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
diversity of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue
to be made on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits
of diversity of the Board members. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills
and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon
the merits and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

'~ OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. Every newly appointed
director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements. Besides, Directors
should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated briefings for
Directors will be arranged and reading materials on relevant
topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
current Directors received the following training with an
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a director
of a listing company in compliance with the CG Code on
continuous professional development during the Year.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

Corporate Governance
Updates on Laws,
Rules & Regulations

Accounting and Financial/
Management or Other
Professional Skills

LEEREMEH - 1RAI Bt R EE
Rz iEE HipFER
Attended Attended
Read Seminars or Read Seminars or
Materials Briefing Materials Briefings
HEHES HEHES
Directors EE EZES [ESE R E E
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman) B (L) Y/ & N/& \V4 N/&
Mr. Qiu Yue A Y/ & N/& \V4 N/&
Dr. Feng Ke BRIEL Y/ % Y/ % Y/ % Y/ %
Mr. Huang Haitao iy Sted Y,/ & Y/ & Y,/ & Y/ &
Mr. Liao Haifei BEREE Y/ % Y/ % Y/ % Y/ &
Independent Non-Executive BIAEBITES
Directors
Mr. Wu Jixue BB+ - N/ & Y/ & N/&
Mr. Zheng Hongliang BT = Y/’ N/& Y/ = Y/ &
Dr. Wang VYi FHEL Y,/ & N/& Y/ = N/ &
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FBITES

Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election. None of the existing Non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific
term. This constitutes a deviation from the code provision.
However, all the Non-executive Directors of the Company
are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings pursuant to the articles of association of the
Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Company considers all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent based on the annual
confirmations received.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

" The remuneration committee has been established.

The current chairman of the committee is Mr. Wu Jixue,
an Independent Non-executive Director, and the other
members are Mr. Zheng Hongliang, and Mr. Xie Xuan.

Under the code provision B.1.1, a listed issuer should
establish a remuneration committee with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
duties. The Company, has established a remuneration
committee as required under the code provision B.1.1.
The role and function of the remuneration committee
includes the determination of the specific remuneration
packages of all Executive Directors, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and to make recommendations to
the board regarding the remuneration of Non-Executive
Directors. The remuneration committee should consider
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

During the year under review, one meeting of the
remuneration committee was held.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
it comprised of namely Mr. Zheng Hongliang, Dr. Wang
Yi and Mr. Xie Xuan. The chairman of the committee is
Mr. Zheng Hongliang, an Independent Non-Executive
director. The committee considers the past performance,
qualification, general market conditions and the Company’s
articles of association in selecting and recommending
candidates for directorship during the year.

The nomination committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board, assessing the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the year, the committee considered and resolved
that all the existing Directors shall be recommended to be
retained by the Company. Further, in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association (subject to the proposed
amendments at the forthcoming annual general meeting),
except Mr. Xie Xuan, the Company Chairman, those who
have served the Company for more than three years will
retire, and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has established an audit committee comprising
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Wang
Yi, Chairman of the committee, Mr. Wu Jixue and Mr.
Zheng Hongliang, and has adopted terms of reference
governing the authorities and duties of the audit committee.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
controls of the Group. The audit committee has reviewed
the draft of this Annual report and the audited financial
statements and has provided advice and comments
thereon. During the year under review four meetings of the
audit committee was held. The audit committee has met
with the auditors twice within the year under review.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year under review, CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
have been appointed as the external auditor of the
Company.

The audit committee of the Company is responsible
for considering the appointment of the external auditor
and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit
functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect
on the Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the total fee

" paid/payable in respect of audit and non-audit services

provided by the Company’s external auditor is set out
below:

BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—RHILFER "
AR BIBLIMNE L BEDIE B % M IR BAR RS
mER/ Rz ER@ERIINT

2018 2017
—T-N\EF e
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#xT T
Type of Services BB FsiEsa
Audit Service FEZRTE 900 808

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year, which give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018
and of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and are properly
prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with
the applicable statutory requirements and accounting
standards. The Directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties which may affect the Company’s business
or cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Statements of Directors’ responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements and external auditor’s reporting
responsibilities as set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

On an annual basis the internal control process was
performed periodically, while the Directors have reviewed
and are satisfied with their ability to comply with the
policies installed as part of the Group’s internal control
system, including, in particular, financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.
Furthermore, the Directors are satisfied with the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions, and
their training programs and budget.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary, Miss Ying Yuk Sim, maintains a
high standard of corporate governance and has complied
with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review all Constitutional documents
have been filed and updated on the GEM & Company’s
websites.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
directors.

According to the GEM Listing Rules, all resolutions put
forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company after each shareholder
meeting.

SREABE

P EBES I

WEREIEIREETT - RIS - EFRFELER
AARBZNEEERG  BR(LER)M
B 2E AREEUANRERERSRE
I 37765 B 38 <7 R AR B 4R UK 2 BE 0 RE B
Bo-BE EEEMUEAKESHRMB
FRIFCETERAEHER BERKE
% MEAARZEEIRIENEE -

ATHE
NEIMEMEB/NMIRBEKEZCEER
WiBSFGEM ET R AIEES. 150K o

HEEREH
REBEFEERN  FEEBSEXHHEFE
WHEGEM N AR R HEUEE HT o

R RHER
RRERREDRREN > NRAREMSEXN
EREE(BEERENES) RERASR

EBLRBR ©

RIBGEMETWRA  RRAE LIREZME
RERBUBRRFARR  BERERRZE
RERNEBRRRGHEREEB T EARA
ABuh ETE, -

SNEEFEBR)ARAH “E-N\FEH

33



34

A £
1 %ﬂnﬁﬁ%

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary

" general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law (2012 Revision). However,
pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company,
general meetings shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more shareholders of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided
that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

General meetings may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one shareholder of the Company which is
a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that
such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings
may be convened by the Board provided that any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them
by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the company

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, if a
shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”)
for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”)
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office.

The Notice (i) must include the personal information of the
Candidate as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing
Rules; and (ii) must be signed by the shareholder concerned
and signed by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness
to be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal
information.

The period for lodgment of the Notice shall commence on
the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

In order to ensure the Company’s shareholders have
sufficient time to receive and consider the proposal of
election of the Candidate as a director of the Company
without adjourning the general meeting, shareholders
are urged to submit and lodge the Notice as early as
practicable preferably at least 15 business days prior to the
date of the general meeting appointed for such election.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Board
of Directors/Company Secretary at the Company’s
head office. For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s)
must deposit and send the original duly signed written
requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the Company’s head office and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed
as required by law.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

~ WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to
the shareholders and investors in compliance with GEM
Listing Rules and uses a number of formal communications
channels to account to shareholders and investors for the
Company.

These include (i) the publication of quarterly and annual
reports; (ii) the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting providing a forum for shareholders of the
Company to raise comments and exchanging views with
the Board; (iii) the Company replying to the enquires from
shareholders timely; (iv) updated and key information of
the Company available on website of the Company; (v)
the Company’s website offering communication channel
between the Company and its shareholders and investors;
and (vi) the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong
serves the shareholders regarding all share registration
matters. Also, the chairman of the board would attend
the annual general meeting and he would also arrange for
the chairmen of the other committees to attend. In case
of the absence, of the chairman of such committees, he
would invite another member of the committee to attend.
These persons would be available to answer questions
at the annual general meeting. The chairman of the
independent board committee would also be available
to answer questions at any general meeting to approve
a connected transaction or any other transaction that is
subject to requires independent shareholders’ approval.
The external auditor would also be arranged to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
independent auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
auditor independence.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Company will keep on reviewing its corporate
governance standards on a timely basis and the Board
endeavour to take the necessary actions to ensure
compliance with the required practices and standards
including the provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG report by the Group highlights its Environmental,
Social, and Governance (the “ESG”) performance, with
disclosure reference made to the ESG Reporting Guide as
described in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and Guidance
set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

This ESG report discusses the Group’s overall performance
in the Environmental and Social of the business operations
in Hong Kong and in the PRC from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2018, unless otherwise stated.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
For this ESG report, in order to identify the most significant
aspects for the Group to report on, key stakeholders
including investors, shareholders and employees have been
involved in regular engagement sessions to discuss and
to review areas of attention which will help the business
meet its potential development and be equipped for future
challenges.

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our
environmental, social and governance approach and
performance. Please give your suggestions or share your
views with us via email at info@acrnet.com.hk.

ASIAN CAPITAL RESOURCES’ SUSTAINABILITY
MISSION

Although the Company’s business model is not
considered to have any major direct impact on carbon
emission, the Company has taken extra effort to
become an environmentally and socially responsible
contributor in today’s society. The Company’s Mission
towards environment, society and governance is to
achieve a coordination and joint development among
the environment, economy and society. It ranges from
helping to shift the investment chain towards responsible,
long-term value creation, such that economic, social
and environmental sustainability are delivered as an
outcome of the investment management process that
the Board undertook, and the various development
initiatives of the Company, including day-to-day corporate
management, business development and product and
service development. In this regard, the Company has also
formulated a relevant environmental, social and governance
policy, which:
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- adheres and complies to the relevant laws and
regulations of corporate environment, society and
governance for conducting the Group’s businesses;

- continues to improve and enhance the Company’s
relevant management system and policy of
environment, society and governance; and

- encourages and promotes our staff and employees
to save energy and conserve resources, supports
and motivates energy saving and emission reduction
measures (i.e. Paperless Office)

We are also very committed to communicating between
management and staff, in respect of sustainability values,
and such information was extended to stakeholders by way
of ESG report.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Type of emissions the Group has involved in the reporting
period was mainly travel emissions and paper consumption.
Our business does not involve in production-related
pollutions which would result in any direct emission.

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSION

Scope of Greenhouse

NVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Gas Emissions Emission Sources (in tonnes of CO_e)
i = R AR e g E HERUR IR (M S{LRER
2018 2017 % Changed

—T-N\E T+ %
Indirect Emission Travel 1.05 tonnes 1.60 tonnes 34.38%
R HERR Z 1.05M0F 1.60M
Other Indirect Emission Paper Consumption 27,000 27,500" 1.81%
H B BERR 4o OE FE
* Sheets of paper * HoRIRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Travel

The Directors and senior executives have actively
engaged in telephone conference meetings rather than
the traditional face-to-face for all non-essential meetings.
This has decreased the travel for the Board and the
senior executives hence reducing the corresponding
carbon emission produced from the traveling. In 2018 the
corresponding emission resulting from travel was 1.05
tonnes compared to 1.60 tonnes in 2017, a reduction
of 34.38% (the above figures has been computed from
http://calculator.carbonfootprint.com/).

Paper Consumption

The Group continues to practice paper saving initiatives,
such as default double-sided printing, reminder for staff
to have environmentally friendly photocopying habit, and
separated collection of waste paper for effective recycling.
A total of approximate 27,000 sheets of paper were utilized
in 2018 compared to 27,500 sheets in 2017, a reduction of
1.81%.

SOCIAL

Equal Opportunity

Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement,
and compensation and benefits. The employees are not
discriminated against or deprived of such opportunities on
the basis of gender, ethnic background, religion, colour,
sexual orientation, age, marital status, family status,
retirement, disability, pregnancy or any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable law. The Group also appreciates
the importance of cultural diversity in the development of
the Group, and promotes the employment of employees in
a wide range of ages, genders, and ethnicities.

Comprehensive and Qualified Training Procedures
Core values are the basis for the training provided by the
Company. While job requirements serves as the theme
and enhancement of job skills serves as the objective for
the overall training. The Company succeeded in designing
targeted training courses facilitating improvement in the
employees’ professional and management quality to
the fullest extent and realizing their growth potentials.
In addition, the Company is qualified to supervise in
the training of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accounts (HKICPA). Furthermore the Company has also
supported and sponsored its employees to obtaining
relevant regulatory certificate for conducting private equity
management in the PRC.
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Anti-corruption

* The Group commits to manage all business without undue

influence and has regarded honesty, integrity, and fairness
as its core values. All directors and employees are required
to strictly follow the Code of Conduct and Group’s policy
to prevent potential bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. The Group’s Code of Conduct states clearly
that:

- All directors and employees should avoid conflicts of
personal interest and their professional duties;

- A situation in which employees exercise authority,
influence decisions and actions or gain access
to company assets and information through their
employment in the Group to achieve private and
personal gain is strictly prohibited.

- Employees is required to declare any conflict of
interest by completing the required form as instructed
by the Group’s Human Resource Department.

- Neither directors nor employees shall obtain or
provide benefits to customers, contractors, suppliers,
or people with business relationship with the Group.

- Accepting voluntary gifts must be declared and have
undergone the approval process as administered by
the Group’s Human Resource Department.

FUTURE DIRECTIONS FROM THE GROUP

The Directors of the Group are currently very well diversified
in respect of both professionally and geographically
to ensure the Group will be prepared for ongoing ESG
compliances. Going forward the Group and its Board
will continue to improve, enhance and promote the ESG
process. The Board and senior executives will continue
to be engaged in ESG training for the improvement of the
Group’s ESG development. More training and development
in terms of raising staff’'s awareness on environmental and
social impacts from the business will also be considered.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
U O A R T A

TO THE MEMBERS OF
ASIAN CAPITAL RESOURCES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 49 to 163, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the Basis For Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As discussed in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of goodwill which has
been allocated to private investment fund management
and consultancy services segment is HK$89,766,000 as
at 31 December 2018. During the year, an impairment loss
of HK$43,512,000 has been recognized in respect of the
goodwill allocated to the abovementioned segment.
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s INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBERE

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Cont’d)

- We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit

evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the reasonableness of
assumptions made by the directors in the estimation of
recoverable amount of the related group of cash-generating
units. There are no other satisfactory audit procedures that
we could adopt to satisfy ourselves as to the valuation of
the goodwill as included in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018 and the Group’s
impairment loss of goodwill included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Any adjustments to the figures as described above might
have a consequential effect on the Group’s financial
performance and cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2018 and the financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2018, and the related disclosures thereof
in the consolidated financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3(c) to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates that the Group incurred a net
loss of HK$57,383,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018 and sustained net current liabilities of HK$8,660,000
at 31 December 2018. These events or conditions, along
with other matters as set forth in Note 3(c), indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. As described in the
BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION section above, we were
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy ourselves as to the carrying amounts of goodwill
as at 31 December 2018 as disclosed in Note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, we are
unable to conclude whether or not the other information is
materially misstated with respect to this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matters described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion section and the Material
Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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" KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter
BARERER

Initial measurement of convertible bonds issued during the year

FABRTARRIES B E

Valuation of convertible bonds

AR IEZ (4 1E

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.
DEGE P BmERMTE21 -

On 21 December 2018, the Group issued convertible
bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$111 million. The fair values of the
liability component of the convertible bonds were
estimated at the issuance date using equivalent market
interest rates for similar bonds without a conversion
option which includes significant unobservable inputs
and significant management estimates. The residual
amount was assigned as the equity component
and included in equity. The fair value of the liability
component was determined by the directors of the
Company based on the valuation by on independent
valuer.

RZE—N\F+ZA=Z+—H X BSEBRTLASLHA
111,000,000/8 JLH) A iR & 25 - Al MRE S B E B D
WAFERETHHRAESREZZENBUGESHE
EMIGHNERMEET ERBEERTAHE W ABELF
EIBEIEHERME - R SHEAARRE D » JIARE
W BEMONRFTER BERRESFRBEELGERM
WILEETE °

Our procedures in relation to management's valuation
of convertible bonds included, among others, evaluation
of the independent external valuer's competence,
independence and objectivity; assessment of the
methodologies used and the key assumptions based on
our knowledge on convertible bonds and the assistance
of our internal valuation experts; and checking, on a
sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of the input
data used such as interest rate, credit spread and credit
rating by reference to comparable bonds and market
data.

EERERBYHRRER ZMERTHIRF BN G
BUSMNEMEMNER BIYUELESE  REESY
AMRESE TR ESFHANBEEZROBE FAF
AT AR A KA RE - URBRALLER K15
HEMEREMEANBARER(WNNE BFEERE
AR =BT ESE -
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FASEERSIE(E)

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

BEENERNMEIEARER

Our procedures in relation to
management’s valuation of convertible
bonds payable included:
%ﬁ;éiiEEHW@H&%%%IEWEZEF
B

- Evaluating of the external valuers’
independence, capabilities and
objectivity;

- AEINEBEERN 2B - BN R
FERE

—  Assessing the methodologies used
and the appropriateness of the key
assumptions; and

- WHEFAAAKRIFERZRES
R

7

- Checking the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.
- REMABABERSE®ENE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

B ZBERE
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ﬂto

j DfF m

B > oo

EREGAVBRERE  EFHAAET
i BEXEEFEKLENEN  LHREER
BREAENEHE(WER) - RIFEFH
# BEEBEBERKFILEE SR ZIA
BEHMEBERAITORE  SRIZARBUFE
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BRHMREZ S SMBRRAREN
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s INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

~ AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

B ZBERE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

~ AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

10/F., Allied Kajima Building,
138 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tong Yat Hung
Practising Certificate number P0O1055

29 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERERAEMEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

Note 2018 2017
B —E-N\E —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000

TFHERT TFAT
Revenue Wz 5(a) 25,800 22,050
Cost of service BR 7 A AN (23,580) -
Other revenue and net income Hilhas K
WA F5E 5(b) 9,593 2,192
Administrative and operating TR R B
expenses (64,792) (60,751)
Impairment of trade and B 5 K H b W AR
other receivables VEREN (3,325) -
Loss from operations KL BB (56,304) (36,509)
Finance costs B E KA 7 (1,156) (1,224)
Share of profits of associates DAGHEE R R E F 168 12
Loss before taxation bR A E 1B 8 (57,292) (37,721)
Income tax Frisit 10 (91) (3,379)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR KEERE (57,383) (41,100)
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hi2E s (E1E) -
ltems that may be reclassified HigngeEH o EEERZ
subsequently to profit or loss: HH :
Exchange difference arising on MEBINEERESZ
translation of foreign operations & =% 914 (828)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ZANEE E 2 mEzs
for the year, net of tax (E518) - HBRTRIA 914 (828)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FEELEBEEE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR (56,469) (41,928)
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO: THANLREILRSTS ¢
— owners of the Company —ARRBHEB A (57,383) (40,872)
— non-controlling interests — IR i (228)
(57,383) (41,100)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
T HECZ-N\FT_A=t+—HIEE

Note 2018 2017
B —E-N\E —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000

F#EIT FAETT
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE TIALEEEZE
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO: 51848 -
— owners of the Company —ARNRQBEB A (56,469) (41,763)
— non-controlling interests — JE AR - (165)
(56,469) (41,928)
HK Cents HK Cents
Al Rl
Loss per share: BREE - 12
Basic and diluted EARRES (3.26) (2.32)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these [ 2B ZE AT BHRET 22—

consolidated financial statement % o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MIARR R

As at 31 December 2018
RZE—-\F+=ZA=+—H

Note 2018 2017
BisE —E-N\f¥ —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENRE 13 2,038 2,795
Goodwill EES 14 89,766 135,618
Interests in associates N /NI iy 15 5,202 5,018
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 2 - 769
Financial assets at fair value through TZEQ?{E SFAEMEE
other comprehensive income W2k 7 B §jx 16 769 -
Amount due from an investee company  JEUIRE B & A R FIE 17 538 109
98,313 144,309
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Trade and other receivables Z 5N EM KRR 18 42,974 40,350
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 19 6,989 11,486
49,963 51,836
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENERE
Trade and other payables f’f%&ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁm 20 53,061 133,283
Amounts due to associates N YNGR S| 15 1,361 980
Obligations under finance leases ﬁéﬁfﬁffﬁ 22 300 300
Tax payable FEfTRIIR 3,901 3,893
58,623 138,456
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RENBEFE (8,660) (86,620)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERTDHAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 89,653 57,689
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Amount due to a director BN —BEEHRIE 26 2,717 3,404
Amount due to substantial shareholder &t F E X B IB 26 17,305 24,544
Convertible bonds payable e A] AR B35 FRIE 21 93,568 -
Obligations under finance leases MEHEET 22 225 525
113,815 28,473
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BfE) BE3SE (24,162) 29,216
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B R fit
Share capital R A 23 176,183 176,183
Reserves A= 24 (200,344) (146,966)
(Capital deficiency)/equity attributable AR EEHB AJENL (B AREL),
to owners of the Company EE (24,161) 29,217
Non-controlling interests eV I 2R (1) (1)
(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)/ (EXBL) aEn
TOTAL EQUITY (24,162) 29,216

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 29 March 2019.

Xie Xuan
Director

Qiu Yue
Director

BEP 2 M BN Eir e Mg HRER 2 — 80 -

R-B-NEF=ZA-_+HhBREEESHRER
R -

A EE BB
EF EF
DHAERBOARAR T /\FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHHNEL
Issued Convertible Non-
share Share  Capital Translation bonds equity Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve  reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
i ThkES
EBTRE  RiE AAGE  ERRG  BERE  RHER Nt FERER it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AR Thn Thr i Thn ThEn ThL AT Thn
Asat 1 January 2017 W-Z-+§-F-R 176183 304371 26000 (372 - [416008) 86814 (15670)  Tii4
Loss for the year rEEFE - - - - - (40872 (40872 (228 (41,100)
Other comprehensive loss E2EEE
Exchange difference arising BEENERAEE,
on translation of foreign EHZE
operations - - - (891) - - (891) 63 (828)
Total comprehensive loss TEEREERLE
for the year - - - (891) - [08T) 4176y (165)  (41,929)
Acquisition of additional interests  WEEMB A2 BMER
in subsidiaries - - - - - (15,834)  (15,834) 15,834 -
Asat31December 2017and  R=F-t%+=F
at 1 January 2018 =t-8%
~%-)\#-B-H 176,183 304,371 26,020 (4,618) - (472,744) 29217 (1) 29,216
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - - 3y (67,383 - r3sy
Other comprehensive income Az EkE
Exchange difference arising HEENERIEL L
on tranglation of foreign EizE
operations - - - 914 - - 914 - 914
Total comprehensive loss AEE2AFRLEE
for the year - - - 914 - (67,383) (56,469) - (66,469)
Recognition of the equity EIaBkES
component of the E&dn
convertible bonds - - - - 3,091 3,091 - 3,091
As at 31 December 2018 R=F-\E+ZR
=t+-8 176,183 304,371 26,020 (3,699) 3,001 (530,127)  (24,161) (1) (24,162

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

2018 2017
—T-N\E —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM KETEBELEZHERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation B ATE B (57,292) (37,721)
Adjustments for: AT RIEFE -
Share of profits of associates Db B N B (168) (12)
Fair value changes on contingent RS AREBATEE
consideration payable - (2,148)
Fair value changes on issue of BT MR ES
convertible bonds NHEE (9,482) -
Interest income B A (6) (15)
Interest expenses MEZ W 1,156 1,224
Depreciation of property, plant and %% - KE R BEZITE
equipment 789 698
Impairment loss of trade and other 8 5 & B fth e It AR 7%
receivables BIEEE 3,325 -
Written-off of trade receivables iiHE 2 B W AR 30 -
Impairment loss of goodwill RHEREEE 45,852 48,737
Operation (loss)/profit before changes &i& & & EE A 2 L&
in working capital (B18), &5 (15,796) 10,763
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 [ E fth & i BR %38 0 (5,978) (423)
Increase in trade and other payables 28 5 [ H b FE < BE 3048 0 25,915 137
Cash generated from operations KEEE2R® 4,141 10,477
Income tax paid BAFTEH (83) (44)
Net cash generated from KETEBEE L
operating activities REFE 4,058 10,433
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE

2018 2017
—T-N\FE ~—ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM BREEHZHERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 U F B 6 15
Net cash outflow on acquisition of Wk B AR R e
interest in subsidiary (Note 30) e FRE (F93E30) - (561)
Purchase of available-for-sale BATHDERE
investments - (769)
Purchase of property, plant and BEME - BE LB
equipment (125) (1,185)
Advances to associates Bl NS E-E (16) (10)
Advances to investee company MIREHRARBK (429) (109)
Net cash used in investing activities RERSMA R FRE (564) (2,619)
CASH FLOWS FROM MEEHZIRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment to a director ERTES (687) (769)
Repayment to substantial shareholder EHFIF EARE (8,365) -
Advances from associates /NI E=E 381 67
Finance lease repayment BEREER (300) (300)
Interest paid 2R A (30) (30)
Net cash used in BEEBTAE S FE
financing activities (9,001) (1,032)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN HERESEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (&%) tmi%iE (5,507) 6,782
EFFECTS OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE [E 3 8 §) > 8548
RATE CHANGES 1,010 (893)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HREVZRESRIASZHEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 11,486 5,597
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZEERESZEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 6,989 11,486

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

REREMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

MAGTHMELBRZHIR

TRFNAEERETHMELRBEZEY
(BRRAS MRS ES) - RELTHMEL
BEDREAEECL(IRKBECRERE)
RAKEGERERERTOERBRELD
FREERSREZRE -

Total
Amount  Obligations liabilities
Amounts Amount due to under from
due to due to  substantial finance financing
associates  adirector shareholder leases activities
FEfTEEE Eft—2 EREE & FiEE
ATRE EENE RERE HEST B4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT TAT FAT TAT
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\§—H—H 930 3,404 24,544 825 29,753
Changes from financing cash flows: B&R & REMEEE
Repayment to a director BAT—REZE - (687) - - (687)
Repayment to substantial ENTEERR
shareholder - - (8,365) - (8,365)
Advances from associates Ae/NTEE 381 - - - 381
Finance lease payments BERENR - - - (300) (300)
Interest paid ERFE - - - (30) (30)
Total changes from financing BEBRSREMEE
cash flows 2yms 381 (687) (8,365) (330) (9,001)
Other changes: Hih &
Interest expenses FlEmE% - - 1,126 30 1,156
Total other changes HEm@Hen a 0 1,126 30 1,156
At 31 December 2018 RZT—\F
+-A=1+—H 1,361 2,717 17,305 525 21,908
DMEEGER)BRAR ZE-)\FER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE

Total

Amount  Obligations liabilities

Amounts Amount due to under from
due to dueto substantial finance financing
associates  adirector shareholder leases activities
MEEH

FEfHE 2 Eft—2 EftEE C FEE

AFRE  EERE  BRERE  HER AfREE
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TR T TR TR TR

At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+F-A—H 913 4,173 23,350 1,125 29,561

Changes from financing cash flows: &R & REMELEE :

Repayment to a director BAT—HREE - (769) - - (769)
Advances from associates BENFRR 67 - - - 67
Finance lease payments MEREMRR - - - (300) (300)
Interest paid BEHE - - - (30) (30)

Total changes from financing RERENEMESL

cash flows 288 67 (769) - (330) (1,032)
Other changes: Hih &
Interest expenses FBEZ - - 1,194 30 1,224
Total other changes HthEEeE - - 1,194 30 1,224
At 31 December 2017 RZB—tF
+ZA=1+—H 980 3,404 24,544 825 29,753
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATION INFORMATION

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, the functional currency of the
Company. All values are rounded to nearest thousand
unless otherwise stated.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are investment
holdings, provision of business consultation services,
and private investment fund management services,
provision of traditional media and internet media
content production management services and
media content design services, provision of internet
development and maintenance services.

e ISR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-N\F+-_A=+—HIFE

ASEN
TMEEZER)BRAR(ARRA])
ARAESHEFMKIIZEREEBRA
A ERODEREBHAERIMERAE
GEM([GEM]J) £ « AR MHEE
DEBLEMI U R ARFER [ AT
ER—EHRE o

REMBRRABTIE  BTREAR
Bz B - RIERTHAN - FTE
BEZBEOTM -

ARRREMBAR (5 [ REE )2
TEXBRREER - REXHERR
BANFAREESERRS - WiRH
ERRENERBRENRREEER
BN R N REHIRG LA RAR R BB R
B3 N MR AR TS o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE

" 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
' KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) that are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
Amendments 2014 - 2016 Cycle except for
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
Amendments of Share-based Payment
Transactions
HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9, Financial
Amendments Instruments with HKFRS 4,

Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15, Revenue
Amendments from Contracts with Customers

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

HKAS 40 Transfer of Investment Property
Amendments
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

The adoption of the above new and revised HKFRSs
has no material impact on these consolidated financial
statements, except as described below:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for (1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, (2) expected credit losses (“ECL”)
for financial assets and (3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9,
i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL model)
retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial
application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as
at 1 January 2018. The difference between carrying
amounts as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the
opening accumulated losses and other components of
equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement (“HKAS 39”).

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 3.

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets under HKFRS 9 and
HKAS 39 at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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FERHEI REBTEEMBRE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS #B([FHEMBEREER]) (&)
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

Summary of effects arising from initial application

of HKFRS 9 (Cont'd)

BREAEEMBREERBISRAE
G2HEBZBE(E)

Financial assets

at fair value

through other

comprehensive

Available-for- income (“FVTOCI”)

sale (“AFS”) required by
investments HKFRS 9
FEMBREEL
BT
AFEFA
Hip 2wz
(TERAFEETA
ot & Hin2mkiz )
([T E])&RE ZIHBEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THERT
Closing balance at RZF—+F+=A
31 December 2017 “t+—HZBREH
— HKAS 39 — BB ERE39% 769 —
Effect arising from initial application BAERBANBRE
of HKFRS 9: RAFIRELECTE -
Reclassification from available-for-sale  Br[ i &K E
investments ok (769) 769
Opening balance at 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\F—HA—H
< BB s — 769

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive
income for the fair value changes of all its equity
investments previously classified as available-for-sale.

AR EIR A R S E NS 2 51T 2 AT S
EATHINE 2 RAREZ AFEED - %
SREVHHEEE  BRNTRATRK

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

These investments are not held for trading and not
expected to be sold in the foreseeable future. At the
date of initial application of HKFRS 9, HK$769,000
were reclassified from available-for-sale investments
to financial assets at FVTOCI, of which HK$769,000
related to unquoted equity investments previously
measured at cost less any impairment under HKAS
39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances
and/or collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost,
including amounts due from associates and investee
company, deposits and other receivables, cash and
bank balances, are assessed on 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) basis as there had been no significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition.

The directors considered that the measurement
of ECL has no material impact to the Group’s
accumulated losses at 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is
that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes existing
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and
related interpretations.
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Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Cont’d)

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying this
standard recognised at the date of initial application,
1 January 2018. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening accumulated
losses (or other components of equity, as appropriate)
and comparative information has not been restated.
Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected
to apply the standard retrospectively only to the
contracts that are not completed at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue and the related
interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied
The application of HKFRS 15 does not have an impact
on the opening accumulated losses at 1 January

2018.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS15 are disclosed in note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new or
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these consolidated financial statements:

HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

Amendments 2015-2017
Cycle!

HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?
Amendments

HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Amendments Compensation'

HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Amendments Associate or Joint Venture®

HKFRS 16 Leases'

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments'
HKAS 1 and Definition of Material®
HKAS 8
Amendments
HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Amendments Settlement’
HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
Amendments and Joint Ventures'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

2 Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2020

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020
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Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of new and revised HKFRSs, certain
of which may be relevant to the Group’s operations
and may give rise to changes in accounting policies,
changes in disclosures and remeasurement of certain
items in the consolidated financial statements. The
Group is not yet to assess their impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs (which
include Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretation) issued by the
HKICPA and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
(“GEM Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

(b) Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention
except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value.

(c) Going concern

The Group incurred a loss for the year of
approximately HK$57,383,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2018 and sustained net
current liabilities of approximately HK$8,660,000
as at 31 December 2018. The directors of the
Company endeavor to improve the Group’s
liquidity position and have taken measures to
reduce overheads and costs to strengthen its
cash flow position. Furthermore, the directors
of the Company are currently exploring various
options in order to provide additional equity
funding to the Group. In addition, the substantial
shareholder has agreed to provide continuing
financial support to the Group to meet its
liabilities as they fall due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basis of consolidation

In view of the above, the directors of the
Company are satisfied that the Group will be able
to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due for the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company are satisfied that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on the going concern basis.
Should the Group be unable to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be
made to write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities. The effect of these adjustments
has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to
give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it
power, including:
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" 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d) Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
with HKFRS 9/HKAS 39, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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" 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. EXE:BE(E)
' (e) Business combinations (e) ZEBEH

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for U BB R Th IR B UL BB EABR » IR

using the acquisition method. The consideration BEHER 2 REBIRAFETE

transferred in a business combination is HEhEAEBEE  EFE - KEB
measured at fair value, which is calculated as EXv8wWERBEEAZERE

the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of T AN 2 E A R Ha gk W BE 5 2 25 e

the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities PrassT 2 RRERIREE BBl 2 A E

incurred by the Group to the former owners of BANEHE o HUNEEEIE 2 AR

the acquiree and the equity interests issued — RN EERRIERS TR -

by the Group in exchange for control of the

acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally

recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets RUEEBH - BUERT A& E K&

acquired and liabilities assumed are recognised BAEAEAEREATERR BT

at their fair value, except that: HITE B BRAD -

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and e ELEMBEEEXBENREH
assets or liabilities related to employee EERAMLHEZEESAEE
benefit arrangements are recognised DRIREE B ERE12
and measured in accordance with HKAS 5 TPrEN ] BB g 4ER
12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 (2011) B1OR(ZE——F)[EE
“Employee Benefits” respectively; and B ERAREE &

o liabilities or equity instruments related o  HMWEE AR BEM
to share-based payment arrangements NREZHEA BT I AARE
of the acquiree or share-based payment B LA BER 2 RE
arrangements of the Group entered B AR 4 U BE 5 DARR 1) B L
into to replace share-based payment ZRREZHRE B E E S
arrangements of the acquiree are measured mIA - DRWEBRER
in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based VSRS A= R E25% [ LARR
Payment” at the acquisition date; and MAERZNRIFE &

e assets (or disposal groups) that are o REBEHBIMEHRERERELH
classified as held for sale in accordance [FHEHEIEREE E MK
with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held E B AFELEZ
for Sale and Discontinued Operations” BE(KHEHER) DIREZ
are measured in accordance with that ARIFTE o
standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the
Group in a business combination includes
assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively with the corresponding
adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date.
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" 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates with the corresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when
the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain
or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income, as appropriate.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and measured under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 would
be accounted for on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had disposed directly of the
previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business
combination is incomplete by the end of the
reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during
the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at the date.

Annual Report 2018

3.

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EXETBR(E)

(e)

EBet(AE)
TRERERTENHEBABHRIA
REAFEZHHERSEE
HURN SR ERIADIE - 1R
REDNIARETSEERRE
BHEMGEAREE 2 EE TR
BN - DBREENARL
RN EEERRE B MEH
& WHEBmTERARA RSN
18 o

EEBAHIMERER - AEEE
ERE 2B B AR
Weig B (VAR B RS IR 5 S
B2 FHEEHE  MilE
HzWaEEE (A ) ARERN
Hir 2Kz (RE@EERLE) R
FERR o IUUES B HA R B i B 0T
REABBEENHEMEEKESR
RURBEFBVHERELERNE
S BB G ERERAEL
TR BANAREERHEZA
R A 2 Bk Z AR R 51 B

R EREXRBA M2 REHRRE
EBEHNN T T REE MR
B RIRGEEAREESBERA
TR BT RIEER - ZFEES
BARAEHRAFAR(R O R
ERBINEERAE - URBRR
WiE BRHERB 2 FERIBAH
BEM(HENS)WEAEERS
BATSROTE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the profit or loss on
disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate is described in note
3(h).

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at
cost less impairment losses.

3.

EX

(f)

(9)

SNEEFEBR)ARAH

e ISR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

ERTBUR(E)

[k

WERBREERE - HIRWER
BE B (R EXEFTHE) 2R
RETREEE (A HIER -

BETAENR  HREHHEE
TR & 6 2 1 R R T 19 28 2 7
EEEERSELEN(RRLE
HERIAAR)) -

EokiBmEzReELEUEESF
R A B RBERNA B E LA BER
BERERTETRERNR - MR
ELBU KBS EIRERE
18+ BUREEIR S 5t 0 BC AR E
DEEZEMTMEHEZEKEE
HERBENATREEZREEZ
PR Z B 2 R B E - &
ZEIREBEREERBEER -
ERRAZHEREBEETENER
iR -

HERBERSELBURETLE
BRRNEEmEZRIEE2R -

AEBBEERE AR MEERE
Z BER B A A P FES () ©

REBAT Z2RE&E
RHB A R 2 RERKARURER
BRARAZ BB KR AT

“E\FER

71



S YN p e

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE

72

(h)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

" 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an
associate are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of an
associate used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Appropriate
adjustments are made to conform the
associate’s accounting policies to those of the
Group. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(h)

Interests in associates (Cont’d)

The Group determines whether it is necessary
to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets” as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method from the date when the investment
ceases to be an associate. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9/HKAS 39. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate at the date the
equity method was discontinued, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a part interest in the associate
is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity
to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

" 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Interests in associates (Cont’d)

The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes
an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction
in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to write off their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Land and building : 2%
20%-33% or over the

remaining lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold
improvement

Furniture and 19%-50%
fixtures

Computer and
equipment

Motor vehicles

19%-33%

20%-33%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the year in which the
item is derecognised.
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" 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS15 since 1 January
2018. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets
Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the date of
initial application/initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income
(*OCI”) if that equity investment is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if:

° it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that is required to be measured
at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.

()  Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised
cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk
on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

(i)  Equity instruments designated as at
FVTOCI
Investments in equity instruments at
FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in OCI and
accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the equity investments, and will
be transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
ECL on financial assets which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9 (including amounts
due from associates and an investee company,
trade and other receivables, deposits and
cash and bank balances). The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)
Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables under simplified approach. The
ECL on these assets are assessed individually
for debtors with significant balances and/
or collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood
or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

(k)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

(k)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)
Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d)

(i)

existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that
the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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745 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

'.. BHEZZ— ) \F+-A=+—HILFE
‘ " 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. EXE:BE(E)
' (k) Financial instruments (Cont’d) (k) BBIRE)
Financial assets (Cont’d) BIHEEE)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d) 8 -ZF—\F—H—HEEHFHK
x (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d) B EERE(E)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d) () 1EERREKXELAGE)
Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes BE XA - REERK
that the credit risk on a debt instrument MEBRITIAEBETANRER
has not increased significantly since HEBEEERRE  BIER
initial recognition if the debt instrument TEZEERBREVIFZHER
is determined to have low credit risk at DA SR AL #2 K08 o iHEB A
the reporting date. A debt instrument is TER BEEIAEEETAEAE
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has BREERR  \HAEBRE
a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has #IER  INVERAREEHRA
a strong capacity to meet its contractual BIEEEHBTHEANR S
cash flow obligations in the near term mEET KiilVRBEER
and iii) adverse changes in economic and ES S o vy G E
business conditions in the longer term may, T—THBERABITHEA
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability NIREREFETZEN -5
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash BB TEZAPRINEEE
flow obligations. The Group considers a AR AEEEEBZ [RER
debt instrument to have low credit risk Al B AREEESRZEELT
when it has an internal or external credit A7 EERBRRIE -
rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness RNEEFHERAURAMNE
of the criteria used to identify whether there ERRY G AR ZEE
has been a significant increase in credit risk 2R WREEREER
and revises them as appropriate to ensure 1BE] » MR E BIELE
that the criteria are capable of identifying SN RIS HEART S B E R
significant increase in credit risk before the N A
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

(k)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(i

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management,
the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay
its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collateral
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;

e ISR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

3. EXEBRE)

(k)

MEIRE)

HBEEE)

BZF—NF—HA—HE#HHZHK

FE)

BB EREE)

iy BHTERE
FRHEERRERNE
REEREE NP KM
INBRIRFISERAETR - &
BATKAIgEREGEREA(R
BASE) X285 E (T
\mEr R AEB T 2 E AR
) - BIEIRENSH -

B L WP BEE
BHEBBENTH  AEEE
BIFCDBEEDY  RIEARE
EREEBAREEENE
ARARZENTEE BB
R BI=E R -

(i) FEEREIHBEE
E-HAZHEUMBEEM
AAARRBEEREEXNAER
BZENEMRER AR
RUBEEESHBREER
- MBEELREERE
ZEBERESRATERZ
AT B BUR -

(@ BITAHBERALRE

RI B
b) BREA  WEORE
LIESEE
DHAERBOARAR T /\FFR

85



745 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

'.. BHEZZ— ) \F+-A=+—HILFE
‘ " 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. EXE:BE(E)
' (k) Financial instruments (Cont’d) (k) BBIRE)
Financial assets (Cont’d) BIHEEE)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d) 8 -ZF—\F—H—HEEHFHK
x (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d) B EERE(E)
(i) ~ Credit-impaired financial assets (Cont’d) (i) EERECHBEEE)
(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for ) MERAMELERZE
economic or contractual reasons TR H PR B AR SR B IR
relating to the borrower’s financial MEERRE 2 BB L
difficulty, having granted to the ZE  HTERAER
borrower a concession(s) that HIER TN TEEE 2 &
the lender(s) would not otherwise 5ok
consider; or
(d) it is becoming probable that the (d) fERABGFAERERE
borrower will enter bankruptcy or THMEBEA -
other financial reorganisation.
(iv)  Write-off policy (iv) HsEECR
The Group writes off a financial asset EARERBEREF B AR
when there is information indicating that EUBEE  BWEFTERK
the counterparty is in severe financial [O] 3% T8 &9 7] gL B () 20 % F
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect FHERNEARERF -
of recovery, for example, when the KB SHEWRERMS &
counterparty has been placed under SO BHABBWRNF (AR
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy BixgbEaM)) KEFS
proceedings, or in the case of trade W BEE - £t MER
receivables, when the amounts are over 2 BEERTZEREERE O
years past due, whichever occurs sooner. sz s EE Rl R
Financial assets written off may still be ANEBWEIRF N E bR &
subject to enforcement activities under the HIT o WHEHBARILERS
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into o Hig U E 7R ZER
account legal advice where appropriate. A B ANER -
write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised
in profit or loss.
86 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

(k)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is
a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as
the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective
basis or cater for cases where evidence at
the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the basis:

° Nature of financial instruments;

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and

° External credit ratings where available.

e ISR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

3. EXEBRE)

(k)

MBIRE)

HBEEEE)

HB=F—N\F—HA—HEEHZK

E(%E)

B EEREE)

v) FIEREREREEEE
BHEEBRZGETIEN
BE - BONEBEBER(NENE
RBERZRE) REXRR 2
HE - BOMERREBOBE
RRBLREEE R AR
ZBEBBEETHE o BH
EEBERZ G RRERE
KB R NERRE - HIRIE
gz HRENRRMERTE o

—kmE  BHEEERR
RESOENANEEZME
BHREREENKEEN
HEB 2R REZHZZ
BAE LIRS HEREE
EZEBRFMERRER -

HIEREE B RIREREE
ArESETHER T AEKFE
BEARLEFREZEBER BB
TRBATEEDHE
e WMBIAME:

o BEAR

s [BEMAZEE HER
(S 54

o  IMBEEFFRMEA)

SNEEFEBR)ARAH “E-N\FEH

87



PPN R e

88

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE

© 3.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

(k)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont’d)
The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: “loans and receivables”
and “available-for-sale” (“AFS”) investments.
The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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HE-F—\F

(k)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

ToA=+—HLFE

" 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(Cont’d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including
amounts due from subsidiaries, associate, and
investee company, trade and other receivables,
deposits and cash and bank balances) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment, except
where the receivables are interest-free loans
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short- term
receivables when the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(Cont’d)

AFS Investments

AFS investments are non-derivatives that
are either designated as available-for-sale
investments or are not classified as (a) loans and
receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or
(c) financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that
are classified as AFS investments and are traded
in an active market are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in
the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated
using the effective interest method and dividends
on AFS equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of AFS investments are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).

AFS equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity investments
are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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745 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

'._ BE_Z—)\Et+_A=t+—HLFE
" 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. EXE:stEBiE (&)
' (k) Financial instruments (Cont’d) (k) BBIRE)

Financial assets (Cont’d) BHEEEE)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 —EFE-NF—H—HAERZKE

(Cont'd) (%)

Impairment of financial assets MK EE 2 RE

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of AAR@RREBRRTFEMEEE

impairment at the end of the reporting period. EALIABE - NEREEEER

Financial assets are considered to be impaired VSRS EERIE 7 —T8

where there is objective evidence that, as a result ZIBEMHESHBITE G RKE S

of one or more events that occurred after initial RESREE . ABREERAD

recognition of the financial asset, the estimated WE

future cash flows of the investment have been

affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include: B BB BIER A E

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or o BITAEXRHHAHIREK
counterparty; or 4P R B o

o breach of contract, such as a default o EH . tNkRBLTEEIYT N F
or delinquency in interest or principal Ba A% ;8
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower o [BERMATEEE e ESNETT
will enter bankruptcy or financial BffE4E © 3%
reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for o HKEEZEBRMBSANE
that financial asset because of financial NEEMmIEL - 3k
difficulties; or

o a significant or prolonged decline in the fair o WBHEIREZAFTEKNERE
value of the equity investments below its HITMEENERA o
cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For certain categories of financial asset,
such as trade receivables, are assessed for
impairment on a collective basis even if they
were assessed not to be impaired individually.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments that pass
the credit period, as well as observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. If, in a subsequent period,
the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods (see the accounting policy
below).
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745 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

ToA=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.

When an AFS investment is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase
in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. In respect of
AFS debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group
are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either
financial liabilities at FVTPL or other financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is either held for
trading or it is designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading
if:

° it has been incurred principally for the
purpose of repurchasing it in the near term;
or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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745 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE-Z—\F+-A=+—AHLEFE

" 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. EXE:stEBiE (&)

' (k) Financial instruments (Cont’d) (k) HMEIARE)
Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d) HBEEERERE(EZ)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Cont’d) RN FEEF AR EEZE(E)
A financial liability other than a financial liability ETHEBRATHEEETHEAGEIA
held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL SNHI R S B &Sk e N e R IE
upon initial recognition if: FIEAILANFESF AEDS

such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

the financial liability forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKFRS
9/HKAS 39 permits the entire combined
contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

o %I TEHBR kK IE R I AT B8
EEXNGERERT -
[CE17

o RMBAEEBNK —HMBE
EXM B ABRME RN
o REERRBAFEGR
BAKEGFENRARERR
BRERBEAFEREEE
17> MARRAENER IR
AEERNEBEY %

e HBKEBE -EXNZHEBRA
ATETAENGLHH — &
o MABYBRELERFE
BB GERER A

AEDAHEBNEERERR

FEFT AR -

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial
liability.

BAHEFABaOMBAEEAR
FERTE - BT EMELEREM
W B BN BERER - EiaT
REV S R E R FEBERITH
BENOERNHNE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade
and other payables, and amounts due to
subsidiaries, associates, a director and
substantial shareholder, and obligations under
finance leases) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would
not be material, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible
instruments. This amount is recorded as a
liability on an amortised cost basis using the
effective interest method until extinguished upon
conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.
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745 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

ToA=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)
Convertible bonds (Cont’d)

The conversion option classified as equity is
determined by deducting the amount of the
liability component from the fair value of the
compound instrument as a whole. This is
recognised and included in equity, net of income
tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured.
In addition, the conversion option classified as
equity will remain in equity until the conversion
option is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to
share premium. Where the conversion option
remains unexercised at the maturity date of the
convertible bonds, the balance recognised in
equity will be transferred to accumulated losses.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the conversion
option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are
recognised directly in equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability
component and are amortised over the lives of
the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company’s own equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the
transferred assets, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other
than in its entirety, the Group allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts on the
date of the transfer. The difference between
the carrying amount allocated to the part that
is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to
be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts.
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745 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

ToA=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

()

(m)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derecognition (Cont’d)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of trade receivables are expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Contract related assets and contract
liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer,
the Group obtains rights to receive consideration
from the customer and assumes performance
obligations to transfer goods or provide services
to the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE TS ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE-_T- \F+ZA=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. BEEXE:BE(E)
(m) Contract related assets and contract (m) E8HBAEERESHER(E)

liabilities (Cont'd)

The combination of those rights and
performance obligations gives rise to a net
contract asset or a net contract liability
depending on the relationship between
the remaining rights and the performance
obligations. The contract is an asset and
recognised as contract assets if the cumulative
revenue recognised in profit or loss exceeds
cumulative payments made by customers.
Conversely, the contract is a liability and
recognised as contract liabilities if the cumulative
payments made by customers exceeds the
cumulative revenue recognised in profit or loss.

Contract assets are assessed for impairment
under the same approach adopted for
impairment assessment of financial assets
carried at amortised cost. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group transfers
the goods or services to the customers and
therefore satisfies its performance obligation.
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745 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

'.. BHEZZ— ) \F+-A=+—HILFE
‘ 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. BEEXE:BE(E)
(n) Cash and cash equivalents (n) BRERBEELEEY

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash REeENRSEEYRIEFHEES -

on hand and demand deposits, and short- SEHRTF S - AR DI EAEARE R

term highly liquid investments that are readily THRARSHAZ=-@EL) mEEE

convertible into known amounts of cash, and & b A B AT R R Rk a] &0

are subject to an insignificant risk of changes N7 EHETEBEERE - Bk

in value, and have a short maturity of generally TEZ(BAREREERBRASE
within three months when acquired, less bank EIR 4B A E— &0 ke
overdrafts which are repayable on demand )

and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.

(o) Revenue recognition (o) WrizfEsR

Revenue is recognised when control over a WS A EE LS IR AE =~ 1l i eE = %

product or service is transferred to the customer, HPEHER  BREBAREEE

at the amount of promised consideration to B REWE Y A EAE - TEER
which the Group is expected to be entitled, ERE=FKBM L5 - WETE

excluding those amounts collected on behalf of FEIBER S HMIEETR - W

third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax T S0 -

or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any

trade discounts.

()  Management and consultancy fee iy EEMEEER
(a) General management and consultancy () —mMEEREKEMEBAR

fee are recognised over the period BRIFTTE T EIRMER -
specified in the contract, as the RAARFEAREHE
customer simultaneously receives & % 5 [R) B AU BR K2 FE
and consumes the benefits provided R & E B FTIZ T
by the Group’s performance as the = e

Group performs.

The transaction price allocated to DEEZEREHRS
these services is recognised as a BERVITHEREERA
contract liability on initial recognition AHaE  WHARGEH
and is related on a straight-line basis BIZEGETE -
over the period of service.

(b) Project base management and (o) PMIEBAERMEREL
consultancy fee is recognised when BEEERARNEL,EIE
the consultation report and service s MR ER -
accepts by the customer.

(i) For media service income, the Group iy MEEBRBKEAME @ &A%
considers the performance obligation is BERABENETASEEE
the production of radio program and the SHE MEBXHEENENE 1T
performance obligation is satisfied at a HEEE R HEEE
point in time at which the control of the X o
program is passed to the customers.

(i) For internet service income, the Group (i) BEMERBKRAME @ &
considers the performance obligation is the EERABANETAERRE
development of application program and A% mMELETHREE
the performance obligation is satisfied at EHIEER TR AR
a point in time at which the control of the ERK o
program is passed to the customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(o)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the
services provided in the course of the ordinary
activities, net of discounts. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised as follow:

()  Management and consultancy fee are
recognised whenever the services are
rendered;

(i)  Media service income is recognised
whenever the services are rendered; and

(iiiy Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised on a time-apportioned basis
that takes into account the effective yield on
the assets.
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mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

'._ BE—Z—)\$+-A=t+—HILFE
" 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. EXE:stEBiE (&)
' (p) Employee benefits (p) EEEH
(i) Short term employee benefits (i) EHIESHEF
Salaries, bonuses, paid leaves and the cost Hae o A B RENIE
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the EEEMNZKATIRE TR
period in which the associated services are HABRE RS 2 BA NEHIE -
rendered by employees. Where payment or W e s EWARIE - T E
settlement is deferred and the effect would TEALBEAN  AZEH
be material, these amounts are stated at IR HIBEYEE -
their present values.
(ii) Retirement benefits schemes (ii) BHEFIGE
The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries NEFBRPEAELM
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) ([HFEAZHBATIETA
are members of central pension schemes Fh R it 7 BT i 2 PR iR
operated by the local governments in KEHEIZRE  MZEWE
the PRC and these subsidiaries make NG 1R Ry N = B
mandatory contributions to these central egHlEf R - WA B TR
pension schemes to fund the employees’ HIRREF o BB+ H A
retirement benefits. The retirement R o hE B AT T
contributions paid by the PRC subsidiaries RKEZITEIEEEH NS
are based on certain percentages of the ZETFTEDHETENS - [
employees’ salaries in accordance with BRELRERIPINR -
the relevant regulations in the PRC, and A PR B 4, 5 AT 3 2 AR R
are charged to profit or loss as incurred. RRET 2 R RERIE -
The Group has no further obligation for AREBWEEMBEREN 2
post-retirement benefits upon payment of EHIT o
the retirement contributions to the central
pension schemes operated by the local
governments in the PRC.
The Group operates a defined contribution NEFE LB AL
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement EEPIMEREFTB 2T E R
benefits scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), B T —ER T A Eee s
under the Mandatory Provident Fund MABERKENETEI(] A
Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees Beia ) #HEIhizE
in Hong Kong. Contributions are made BEXRHFEZAETEDEIE
based on a percentage of the employees’ Y WIRERESTEI 28
basic salaries and are charged to profit or BIREMNBEEZERD N
loss as they become payable in accordance o RELTEZEERE
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The VEBZESES  HAE
assets of the MPF Scheme are held BrEESH - AEBHBZE
separately from those of the Group in an THIAHZEZRESETE
independently administered fund. The BagsEEES -
Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.
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ARE TS ERRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_T- \F+ZA=+—HLFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. BEXE:tEk(#Z)

(p) Employee benefits (Cont’d) (p) ESEHE)
(iii) Share-based payments (iii) LI 156

The fair value of the share options granted
to employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
included in profit or loss for the year of
the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based payment reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-
based payment reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based
payment reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to
accumulated losses).
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745 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

ToA=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(p)

(a)

(n

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(iv) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

()

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of the reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

ToA=+—HLFE

" 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Current tax and deferred
tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current tax and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. When
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair
value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as a finance lease obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(s)

t)

Leases (Cont’d)

The Group as lessee (Cont’d)

Lease payments are apportioned between
finance expenses and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable
to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy
on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy
above).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Contingent liabilities

Present obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliably. Possible
obligations that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as a contingent
liability unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

" 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the entity’s net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case, such
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the
monetary item.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the translation reserve as a
separate component of equity. Such exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed
of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(u)

(v)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

In addition, in relation to partial disposal of a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation
that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share
of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed through acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

()  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or a parent of

the Group;

or
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" 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(v) Related parties (Cont’d)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

() the entity and the Group are the
members of the same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint
venture of other entity (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a
member);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vij the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person is identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of the
parent of the entity);

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(w) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management has
made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

(a)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives, after taking into account of their
estimated residual value. The determination
of the useful lives and residual values involve
management’s estimation. The Group assesses
annually the residual value and the useful life
of the property, plant and equipment and if the
expectation differs from the original estimate,
such a difference may impact the depreciation in
the year when the estimate is changed and the
future period.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires management to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
units and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate present value.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
December 2018 was HK$89,766,000 (2017:
HK$135,618,000). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are set out in note 14.

Fair value measurement and valuation
processes

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. In estimating the fair value of a
financial instrument, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. The management of the Group
works closely with the qualified external valuers
to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that
include inputs that are not based on observable
market data to estimate the fair value of certain
types of financial instruments. Note 21 and 28(c)
provides detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of various
financial instruments.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate
ECL for the trade receivables. The provision
matrix is based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in
the forward-looking information are considered.
In addition, trade receivables with significant
balances and credit impaired are assessed for
ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and
the Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in
notes 28(b)(ii) and 18 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

REVENUE

(a)

Wy 2%
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is (@) AEEFERAWREIFTOT
as follows:
2018 2017
—B-N\EFE —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ERT FAET
Management and consultancy fee S NERE R 12,075 21,067
Media service income HEERBEA 10,974 983
Internet development and BN e
maintenance service income Bl 75 A 2,569 -
Sundry income MBI A 182 -
25,800 22,050
Timing of revenue recognition RIS 2 B
A point of time —{ERE R 2, 25,167 22,050
Over time —EBEERN 633 -
25,800 22,050

An analysis of the Group’s other revenue and net

b) AEBEFAREMEERKRAFES

income for the year is as follows: AT
2018 2017
—T-N\E T —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Other income H A Ug A 105 29
Interest income I B A 6 15
Fair value gain on contingent JE AR BRFER T
consideration payable - 2,148
Fair value changes on issue of BT E S A EE
convertible bonds 9,482 =
9,593 2,192

SNEEFEBR)ARAH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE
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- 6.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Segment information reported to the chief operating
decision maker, directors of the Company, is the
type of services rendered by the Group’s operating
division for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment. The Group’s operating and
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

The Group is currently organised into two major
business divisions:

()  private investment fund management and
consultancy services, internet development and
maintenance services (“Consultancy Services”);
and

(i)  traditional media and internet media content
production services and media content design
services (“Media Services”).

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment revenue represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment
sales in the year.

Segment results represent the profit/loss incurred by
each segment without allocation of corporate income
and expense, central administration cost, directors’
salaries, share of results of associates, certain
interest income, fair value changes on contingent
consideration payable, fair value gain on issuance
of convertible bonds, finance costs and income tax
expense.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible
assets and current assets other than interests in
associates, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (2017 available-for-sale
investments), amount due from an investee company and
corporate assets.

Segment liabilities include current liabilities other
than convertible bonds payable, amounts due to
associates, amount due to substantial shareholder,
obligation under finance leases, tax payable and
corporate liabilities.

Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. PEPEE(E)
(a) Segment revenues and results (a) iR LS
2018
—E-N\E
Consultancy Media

Services Services Total

AR AR T R ARTE fst

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHER THER TFHER

Management and consultancy fee &2 I B[ & F 12,075 - 12,075

Media service income WA ARSI - 10,974 10,974

Internet development and HEEmRE N

maintenance service income HETERR S WA 2,569 - 2,569

Other Hth 182 = 182

Segments revenue D EpUR AR 14,826 10,974 25,800

Segments results DEPELER (62,540) (3,196) (65,736)

Interest income LB U A 2

Unallocated corporate expenses RO A FIFY (52)

Other revenue Hiplzs 9,482

Share of profits of associates il RN eyl 168

Finance costs BMERAK (1,156)

Income tax expense FTiEHiAY (91)

Loss for the year REFEE (57,383)
TNEE () AR A —T\GER 117
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE

" 6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) SEEFE(E)
' (a) Segment revenues and results (Cont’d) (a) PEUERELSE(E)
2017
—T—+F
Consultancy Media
Services Services Total
8 AR 75 ERE RIS BEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET THET
Segments revenue o b EE 21,067 983 22,050
Segments results DEIELE (30,567) 591 (29,976)
Interest income 2 U A 1
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBARFL (8,682)
Fair value changes on contingent [EfTsi AR (B
consideration payable NEEE 2,148
Share of profits of associates FE(R B & N B 2 m A 12
Finance costs BB A (1,224)
Income tax expense FTiSHiF Y (3,379)
Loss for the year REEEE (41,100)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities

e ISR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

SEEE(E)
(b) SBAEREME

2018
—E-N\f¥
Consultancy Media
Services Services Total
AR AR5 IRERTS st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET TFET TET
Segments assets DEEE 129,361 9,517 138,878
Unallocated assets KOBLEE 2,889
Financial assets at fair value BAVEFALEMEE
through other comprehensive Wk M EE
income 769
Amount due from e — R E
an investee company HEARHIE 538
Interests in associates i AN i 5,202
Consolidated assets RABE 148,276
Segment liabilities DEEE 33,670 10,285 43,955
Unallocated liabilities KB E 11,823
Tax payable NS 3,901
Amounts due to associates e B & N B A 1,361
Obligation under finance lease ~ FWEMEEE 525
Covertible bonds payable JE AT AR B A FUR 93,568
Amount due to substantial FERE B R ZUA
shareholder 17,305
Consolidated liabilities meaE 172,438
TMEE (=) BRAR] T \FER



Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

F+-A=t+—HLFE

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

745 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

SEERE(F)
(b) PBEEREEE)
2017
—T—+F
Consultancy Media
Services Services Total
T AR ERE RIS mEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR AT TAT

Segments assets DEVEE 179,902 8,402 188,304
Unallocated assets Ko EE 1,945
Available-for-sale investments At HERE 769
Financial assets at fair value BAFERTA

through other comprehensive Hib2EREZ

income MBEE -
Amount due from JEW —FERE

an investee company HEARRE 109
Interests in associates REE DB 2 5,018
Consolidated assets BREE 196,145
Segment liabilities HEEE 14,059 3,697 17,756
Unallocated liabilities AOECEE 144,300
Tax payable e I8 3,893
Amounts due to associates il NGIEeE] 980
Consolidated liabilities meEBE 166,929
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE
6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. DEEE(E)
(c) Other segment information (c) EHihsEBEHR
2018
—T-N\EF
Consultancy Media
services services
FER AR TS IR BE AR TS
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FERT
Capital expenditure BEARRX 125 -
Depreciation of property, Y - BB RRE
plant and equipment ZITE 158 36
Impairment loss of goodwill HEREEE 43,512 2,340
Interest income LR A 4 -
(Reversal)/impairment loss of trade & 5 [z H b & 1 BR R (B /S
and other receivables 1B(EE ), BE 2,960 (421)
2017
—E—+tF
Consultancy Media
services services
B AR 7S B ES AR 7%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Capital expenditure BARRX 1,185 -
Depreciation of property, Y - WE REZE
plant and equipment e 104 8
Impairment loss of goodwill B EE 1R 48,737 -
Interest income B A 14 -
THEEERBERAT  —E—\FEH 121
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122

HE-F—\F

(d)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

ToA=+—HLFE

" 6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are mainly located in the
PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group’s revenue from external customers by

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEBEE(E)
(d) HIREF

AEBZEBETEURTERE

7 o

AEBIZWHE S D 2 INEEP

geographical location is detailed below: WM
2018 2017
=T-N\FE —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FHET
PRC F 25,750 9,637
Hong Kong &5 50 12,418

The Group’s information about its non-current
assets (excluding financial instruments) by
geographical location is detailed below:

AEBZMWHMEE D ZIFRBHE
E(TEEVBIA)FENT

2018 2017

—B-N\E —ZT—+F

HK$’°000 HK$’000

F#ET FAT

PRC A 91,433 137,706
Hong Kong EE 2,835 3,003
94,268 140,709
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(e)

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers of the corresponding
periods individually contributing over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group are as follows:

e ISR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

SEEF(E)

(e)

FRXEERZEH
PIEEEEA - REEBIEF 2K
mUEAREBRBYZEFEB10%) 10
™

2018 2017
—E-N\EFE —ZT—+=F

Segment HK$’000 HK$’000

7EB FHET FAETT

Customer A Consultancy services - 5,760
BEFA 1 AR 755

Customer B Consultancy services - 4,800
%FPB AR AR 75

Customer C Consultancy services - 4,000
%FC BRI RS

Customer D  Consultancy services - 2,500
®FD A 1 AR 755

Customer E  Consultancy services 11,391 -
BPE B AR 755

Customer F Media services 7,594 -
®PF HEE R

DMEEGER)BRAR ZE-)\FER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE

FINANCE COSTS A& R A
2018 2017
—T-N\FE ~—ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi#&T FAET
Interest on other loan HEMEZFE 1,126 1,194
Interest on finance lease EEFHER B 30 30
1,156 1,224

8. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION Bt piEstE

The Group’s loss before taxation is arrived at after

REBZBRBRATBRIEHER T &R

charging: BIFH :
2018 2017
—T-N\FE —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BETRACTBREESH M)
remuneration)
— wages, salaries and other benefits —T& - #Ha MHAEF 6,859 2,321
— retirement benefits scheme — R FIFH B
contributions 254 192
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN 900 808
Depreciation of property, plant and W BEMZEZITE
equipment 789 698
Operating lease rentals in respect of ~ tH RIEF 7 KLHALHAE
land and buildings 2,417 1,139
Legal and professional fees FERBEEEA 1,650 1,996
Impairment loss of goodwill e ZREEE 45,852 48,737
Impairment loss of trade and other B 5 N E M E U BR ZOR BB
receivables 3,325 -
Written-off of trade receivables iiH 2 5 e AR K 30 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EERESFHMN
REMUNERATION
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) EEFM
The details of emoluments of each director are BEEEZMNEeFBOT

shown below:

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE—F—)\E+=-H=+—HI
5
As directors As management
fEBES fEBEERE

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefits

and other scheme

benefits contributions
Fees #i& EMR RIKEF Total
Name of director ESnz e HitFlz BN 4t

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET TET FET

Executive directors: HITES .

Xie Xuan HE 540 - - 540

Qiu Yue nifii - - - -

Feng Ke BE 504 - - 504

Liao Haifei (Note (i) B (M) 94 — - 94

Huang Haitao (Note (i) aEE (M) 94 - - 94

Independent non- BIUFHTES:

executive directors:

Wu Jixue e 30 - - 30

Zheng Hongliang AR 18 - - 18

Dr. Wang Yi TeiEt 36 - - 36
1,316 - - 1,316

Note (i): Appointed on 9 August 2018 Bz : R=ZE2—NFNALBE

L
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745 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
T HECZ-N\FT_A=t+—HIEE

‘ 9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EERESHMNZ)
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (Cont’d) (a) EBEEFNE)
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-—F—tFEFL+=-HF=+—HI
FE
As directors As management
ERESR ERERE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
benefits  contributions
Fees &  =2HR RIKEF Total
Name of director EEHA ik H it Hls ATEIHR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT FHET THL
Executive directors: BITEE:
Xie Xuan B 540 - - 540
Qiu Yue ilgias - - - -
Feng Ke B 504 - - 504
Independent non- BIUFHTES:
executive directors:
Wu Jixue R 30 - - 30
Zheng Hongliang AR 18 - - 18
Dr. Wang Yi TeiET 36 - - 36
1,128 - - 1,128
There was no arrangement under which FA - BEARNLHESRFESTN
a director waived or agreed to waive any BREENERMNTH(ZZE—+
remuneration during the year (2017: Nil). FoofE)o
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e ISR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EEREEFHIME)
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)
(b) Five highest paid employees (b) AEREHES
The five highest paid employees during the FER - AMNESHEERBIEMRA
year included two (2017: two) directors whose —E—F A ES  HE
remuneration is set out in directors’ remuneration HIN EX@QEFEEFHHN 55 - H
in (a) above. Details of remuneration of the BN (CE—+F —h)IEES
remaining three (2017: three) non-director BEZEHMESMT :
employees are as follows:
2018 2017
“EB-)N\f —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Salaries, allowances and CEER R E A F
other benefits 1,203 1,212
Retirement benefits scheme RKEFET S
contributions 18 18
1,221 1,230

Their emoluments fell within the following band:

BEZMENFIATHRE :

2018 2017
—EB-N\E —ZT—+F

Nil to HK$1,000,000

£ % 1,000,000/ 7T

MEEGER)BRAR “E-N\FEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE

" 10. INCOME TAX 10. FRiG8i
' (a) Income tax in the consolidated statement (a) MREEEEZEREGEEWMERZE
of profit or loss and other comprehensive BHb
income represents:
2018 2017
ZT-N\FE —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Current tax — PRC Enterprise BIHAFI IR — R B {3
Income Tax FriSat
Charge for the year REFEMX - 44
Current tax — Hong Kong EVEARRIE — B/
Profits Tax IES)
Charge for the year REFEMX 8 3,335
Under provision in prior year ERFERETR 83 -
Deferred tax EET IR = -
Income tax expense FTigfi sz 91 3,379

FRBETEREFIZ16.5%
MR EFEEENER(ZZE—+
F:16.5%) °

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profit for the year
(2017: 16.5%).

PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at 25% FRB G FT FERTR FIR25% T
on the estimated assessable profit for the year EAERBECEMSEHR(ZE—+
(2017: 25%). 4 1 25%) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

10. INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

(b)

10. FiiR%L(#&)
Reconciliation between income tax expense (b)
and accounting loss per the consolidated

FieBAX RGeS RERAtER
W RAERERAREAEZER

statement of profit or loss and other EiEZ2HERIOT :
comprehensive income at applicable tax
rates is as follows:
2018 2017
—FT-N\E —T—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHAT
Loss before taxation bR A E 1B (57,292) (37,721)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, 1ZBRIERE Al AME R 2%
calculated at the rates applicable M EE 2 m AR
to profit/loss in the jurisdictions HRBRIEEAE 2
concerned BEMIE (14,319) (10,627)
Income not subject to tax BEREAB WA (1,600) (781)
Expenses not deductible for tax TEEM 2 X
purpose 1,616 14,787
Unused tax loss not recognised RIEAZA KRB IEEE 14,311 -
Under provision in prior year ERFERB TR 83 -
Income tax expense for the year FRNZFAERAX 91 3,379
EMNEEFER)ER AR ZE-)\FER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE

" 11. DIVIDEND

130

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividends For the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: Nil).

12. LOSS PER SHARE
(a) Basic loss per share
The calculations of the basic loss per share are

11. K2
EERBEEMRAEE_T—NF+_A
St+-—HUEFEREFMARE(ZT
—tFEE) o

12. BIREBHE
(a) SREFEHE
SRR AR TIIR A T BT

based on the following data: =
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FATT
Loss attributable to owners of KRNFVEE ANEL
the Company &8 (57,383) (40,872)
2018 2017
A —_ET—+F
Weighted average number of R+ZA=+—HB2

ordinary shares at 31 December EEAE N EE 1,761,825,563 1,761,825,563

(b) Diluted loss per share
Diluted loss per share is same as basic loss per
share detailed above because the only potential
dilutive share is convertible bond which is anti-
dilutive (2017: the only potential dilutive share
is convertible bond to be issued and it is anti-
dilutive).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HE-F-N\F

13. W% BERRE

TTA=+—HLFE

Land and
Computer buildings
Leasehold Furniture and Motor outside
improvement and fixtures equipment vehicles Hong Kong Total
BERN
HENERE RHREE SRR RE HERET it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn &R TER TER TET TET
Cost A
At 1 January 2017 R-5-t%5-f-A 475 198 313 2,198 - 3,844
Additions hE - - - - 1185 1185
Acquisition of subsidiary YENELT - 168 2 - - 170
Exchange difference EREE 31 5 1 80 - 117
At 31 December 2017 RoE—tE+Zf
and at 1 January 2018 =+-BR
“E-\¥-A-H 506 3 376 2878 1,185 5,316
Additions hE - 73 5 - - 12
Exchange difference EREE 23) (t1) 1) (59) (61) (155)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F12R
=t+-A 483 433 41 2,819 1,124 5,286
Accumulated depreciation ~ BtiEREERE
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2017 R-5-tE-f-H 121 164 368 1118 - 1,171
Charge for the year RERRR % 18 4 568 13 698
Exchange diference EXZE 9 1 1 41 - 5
At 31 December 2017 and RZE-+E+2A
at 1 January 2018 =+-BR
“2-)\5-A-8 25 183 373 1,721 13 2521
Charge for the year FERRY ot g 14 572 2 789
Exchange difference EizE (12) ) 1) [44) (1) (62)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-\ETZR
=t-8 307 266 386 2,255 34 3,248
Net carrying amount RE%E
Atat 31 December 2018 RZE-\F12R
=t-8 176 167 iy 564 1,090 2,038
Atat 31 December 2017 RIE-+E+ZA
=t+-A 281 188 3 1,151 1,172 2,79

At the end of the reporting period, the net carrying
amount of motor vehicle with finance lease

arrangement was HK$348,000 (2017: HK$696,000).

RIpEHR - FEmERELT N RS
BRE R E 4348,0008 T ( Z B —+ 4 ¢
696,000/ 7T ) °

SNEEFEBR)ARAH
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" 14. GOODWILL 14. B8
2018 2017
—ET-N\E —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TFAT
Cost [B#N
At 1 January R—H—H 201,021 198,681
Additional amount recognised from BFERETHEBRESH
business combination occurring HERRREING B
during the year (Note 30) (FfF5E30) = 2,340
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 201,021 201,021
Accumulated impairment losses ZETREEE
At 1 January Rn—H—H 65,403 16,666
Impairment loss recognised in the year 4 A2 2R EE B 45,852 48,737
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 111,255 65,403
Net carrying amount AREFE
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 89,766 135,618

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing

FEMRENADEENATENZRS

purposes to the following groups of cash-generating EEEEN -
unit:
2018 2017
—EB-N\E —ZT—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHETT
Private investment fund management FLAREEESEERR
and consultancy services =l
(“Consultancy Services”) ([EERIARTS 1) 89,766 133,278
Traditional media and internet media ~ {E4T 52 & B B 4E 8~
content production management NARUEERRE &
services and media content design IR BN A R ET IR
services (“Media Services”) ([1EEEAR ) — 2,340
Consultancy Services FEG) e

The management appointed independent qualified
professional valuer, Ascent Partners Valuation Service
Limited to determine the recoverable amount of this
group of cash-generating unit.

The recoverable amount of this group of cash-
generating unit is determined based on a value in use
calculation which uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by directors of the
Company covering a five-year period, and a discount
rate of 17.63% per annum (2017: 17.96%).
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GOODWILL (Cont’d)

The cash flows beyond that five-year period have
been extrapolated using a steady 2.61% (2017:
2.93%) per annum growth rate which does not exceed
the long term average growth rate for the market.
Consequently, the cash-generating unit has been
reduced to recoverable amount of HK$89,766,000
(2017: HK$133,278,000). Accordingly, an impairment
loss of HK$43,512,000 (2017: HK$48,737,000) has
been recognised and included in “administrative and
operating expenses” in the profit or loss. Any adverse
change in the assumptions used in the calculation of
recoverable amount would result in further impairment
losses.

Media Services

Based on the estimation of recoverable amount by
directors, an impairment loss of HK$2,340,000 has
been recognised and included in “administrative and
operation expenses” in profit or loss. In 2017, the
recoverable amount of this group of cash-generating
unit is determined by the directors of the Company
based on value in use calculation which uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the directors of the Company covering a five-year
period, and a discount rate of 10.3% per annum.

e ISR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-N\F+-_A=+—HIFE

14. &E(E)

hFHBAz R REREBERIER
RGE261% (- F—+4F : 2.93%)

B OMEBEXRTBBEMSRETY
BEX -BeELESBNEAMBZEA
I [B] 4 %8 89,766,00058 T ( — & — +
% : 133,278,000 7T ) - ALt - FIE
[£518 43,512,000 8 T (=T — = F :
48,737,000/ 70 ) E R - Wit AB&®
2 TTERREBRY ] - sTERAIE &5
FTAZBENEEMNAF S G BRI
SNBEETE -

I BRARFE

ERERHAKLFE B BEER
LB B 182,340,000 7T » Wt AE
ZITHEEERY | - RZE—+F
BRIz ReESBMZ A REISET)
BARREEREBEFEREEET  mE
RAEBENMEAQARESIEZKEL
ZHEEREBUE - ZMBRERE
AFHME - BRIRERAFF10.3%

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 15. REE AT 2L
2018 2017
—B-N\E —ZT—+F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHET FEIT

Unlisted investments 3EJ:_rﬁTxiéf

Share of net assets 15:%%?%@ 2,464 2,296
Amounts due from associates JE Uk B N A 2,738 2,722
5,202 5,018
2018 2017
—B—N\EFE —ZE—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Amounts due to associates JESTEE N A 1,361 980

Amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and has no fixed repayment terms.

Particulars of the associates are set out in Note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements.

JEHSZ/JT%“HH%?%’A AIRAREER - 2
B3 88 [ 7E R KR o

ZZAA/\
33 °

AR BERNEE MR T

SNEEFEBR)ARAH “E-N\FEH
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2 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

T HECZ-N\FT_A=t+—HIEE

" 15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) 15. REBAT) 2R (Z)

' Aggregate information of associates that is not BRITE AL ATNEETEER -
individually material:

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FHBT

Aggregate carrying amount of e BHREFERNTEXR
individually immaterial associates in GE AT 2 REEARE
the consolidated financial statements 2,464 2,296

Aggregate amounts of these Group’s ~ AEBE DL E N A

share of interests in associates MR
Profit for the year F N A 168 12
Other comprehensive income Hir 2w =
Total comprehensive income FHENZBRE 168 12

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 16. ZAFEHANEM2 TS 2B

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE REE
INCOME
2018 2017
—T-N\E —T—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
Unlisted equity securities, at fair value  FE_F IR ANE S (IR A FE) 769 -
Financial assets at fair value through other BEATEFAEMEARSZHHEE
comprehensive income are equity securities held for DAEREENFRE ZRARS  WEA
strategic purposes and stated at fair value. FETIER o
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN INVESTEE
COMPANY

Amount due from an investee company is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and has no fixed repayment
terms.

e ISR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

7. RMHIREHRATIRIE

ERREHRARFARBEER £8
B E & R o

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES . B R HMEWARTR
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZT—+F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FAIT
Trade receivables B S EWBRK 29,862 25,5616
Impairment loss BEEE (4,840) (2,433)
25,022 23,083

Prepayments, deposits and other TERTRIE - e K&

receivables Hth fEUBR TR 17,952 17,267
42,974 40,350

The credit terms granted by the Group to customers
are determined on a case-by-case basis with
reference to the size of service contracts, recurrent
services provided to the customers and their credit
history. The Group makes provision for trade
receivables based on specific review. Provision is
made against trade receivables after considering the
amount due, creditability of customers and other
qualitative factors.

The trade receivables amounting to HK$25,022,000
in which HK$16,433,000 have been settled
after the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$13,980,000).

AEEREPRHEZERERDZER
BENTHE  RREFEPHERMKZR
BREEZEBEELIZERITREE °
REBIZE R TR E 5 YR AE H
B AREERERIHEE FF
EEREMEERTERYE SRR
TR B -

Z 5 W R &5 525,022,000 7T -
HA16,433,0008 TERBE=_ZT—/\
F+-_A=Z+—RALFEERBHE(ZZ
—+%F : 13,980,000 7T ) °

SNEEFEBR)ARAH “E-N\FEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 18. B5 R EEWERE: (&)
The movement in impairment loss is as follows: EEE ST
2017
—EFE—+F
HK$’000
FHETT
At 1 January w—HA—H 1,790
Acquisition of subsidiary =N 643
At 31 December nt+—_HA=+—H 2,433
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the REBRHEHRIZERE BB RIORER
Group at the end of the reporting period based on the ERBECESERER ZRER DTN
invoice date and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is N
as follows:
2018 2017
—B-N\E —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFAT
0 to 30 days 0ZE30K 4,968 13,140
31 to 60 days 31E60K - 720
61 to 90 days 61E290K - 180
Over 90 days HBiE0K 20,054 9,043
Total trade receivables B 5 e R TR B 5 25,022 23,083

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 18. BS R EEWERE: ()

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was NZE—NEFE—HA—HZH ' BEE
recognised only when there was objective evidence EBEEAREEEBHERME(RW
of impairment (see note 3(k) — policy applicable H3k——ZE—N\NF—HA—HRERB
prior to 1 January 2018). At 31 December 2017, the ZHE)VEBER R_E—+F+_-A1
ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither =+—H  BEERIERWEARE

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired B S EWEI ZERE DN

are as follows:

2017
—T—+F
HK$’000
FAETT
Neither past due nor impaired B B OB (E 14,040
Less than 1 month past due BE DR —1E A 2,730
1 to 3 months past due wH—Z= =18 A 1,782
Over 3 months past due wEI=E AN E 4,531
9,043
23,083

Past due but not impaired

As at 31 December 2017, receivable that were
past due but not impaired related to a number of
independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

The credit period of the Group’s trade receivables
ranges from 60 days to 90 days in 2017. For certain
customers with long-estimated relationship and good
past histories, a longer credit period may be granted.

No interest was charged on the trade receivables.
The Group did not hold any collateral over these
balances. The management of the Group monitors
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and considers adequate impairment loss has been
recognised for irrecoverable amount, if necessary.

In 2017, impairment loss has been provided because
the customers were in default or delinquency of
payments.

Note:included in other receivables, a balance of
HK$11,385,000 (2017: HK$12,008,000) is managed
receivable. The investors entrusted the Company’s
subsidiaries to manage other receivables (“managed
receivables”) and other payables (“managed
payables”).

B s KRR E
R-ZBE—+F+-A=+—H @BHE
fe) AR OB (BL 2 A0 AR K o BN R [ AR 5
RFFEBREIETBLEP - ZNB
TR ARREERRANEEEER
MEBEEANES  HZFEHRDKE/A
2EURE - WBARZ S EHRIERER
e

N-T—+F KEBZEFREWRER
ZIEEHNFHR60E90R - ga TEHE
HRRABRLMBERTREHZEREM
T BEREEHEELE -

ZEEHRUWERRTDTEE - AEER
EpmEaanaErEfimn - A5E
ZEEEERSRARBMNESER 2K
ElEE - TRRDERBEERE 2 S5
EREHIREBR(IFR)

RZT—+F SR EEEFEDLR
B HEEPRASIERIHEA

BoaE « B b B UK BR 3k P B2 35 11,385,0007% 7T
(ZZF—+% 112,008,000/ 7T) 2 2 &
BERERGESS - BEBEZTLARA]
WEBAREEEMmERER([ZEE
FEWREZR D REMEMERR(TZER
FERTBRZR]) ©

SNEEFEBR)ARAH “E-N\FEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE
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- 19.

20.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. & RINSZEEY

2018 2017

—EB-N\E T —+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Cash and bank balances B MIRITEE 6,989 11,486

Bank balances comprise deposits with bank held by
the Group with an original maturity of three months or
less.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

$F.77 65 05 L5 o A SR 37 T R B A
BEEAKT RS2 RN -

20. SR HMAEFFIRRR

2018 2017

“E-N\E —T—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FiET FAET

Trade payables EFEMBER 22,592 878
Accruals and other payables TEIR B A M B M T BR IR 26,584 132,405
Contract liabilities ANBE 3,885 _
53,061 133,283

In 2017, included in “Accruals and other payables”
of HK$132,405,000, an amount of HK$106,141,000
is related to the convertible bonds to be issued. The
convertible bonds were issued on 21 December 2018.
Please refer to note 21.

An ageing analysis of the trade payables of the Group
at the end of the reporting period based on the invoice
date is as follows:

RZZE—tF  RETABREARE
o FEfHBR X | 2 132,405,000/ T4 @ &
¥H106,141,000/8 T A B #G F 3172 0]
MERES TBRREFER_ZT—N\F
T+ A=+ —HE1T - B2EMNE21 -

< B S RAARRER

2018 2017

—EB-N\E —T—tF

HK$000  HK$'000

FHERT FHET

Less than 90 days ENINCOFN 4,682 -
90 to 180 days 90%F 180K 17,533 408
Over 180 days HiE180K 377 470
Total trade payables B O EMNERERERE 22,592 878

Note: As mentioned in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, included in other payables, a balance of
HK$11,385,000 (2017: HK$12,008,000) is managed
payable.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Trade deposits from customer of internet
development services

When the Group receives a deposit before service is
rendered, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the
beginning of a contract, until the revenue recognised
on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of the
deposit. No deposit was received and outstanding at
the beginning of the year.

Annual Report 2018

MisE 4R & BT IS R P
£ 11,385,000 78 7T (
12,008,000/ ) &
A AT EIRENIRR -

TEORRENABESBNEZMNRE
AT

REEBERERBEEFNESES

FEEREEREIRRIESE « 57
ABMBELADAR  BERENA
OREZM N RIBIES S EAL - 1)
I B S R RS -

Kk T



21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLE

e ISR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-N\F+-_A=+—HIFE

21. EftOIiRiRESFRIE

2018 2017

—EB-N\E _—_T—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Convertible bonds AR ES 93,568 -

On 21 December 2018, the Company issued
HK$111,238,000 zero coupon convertible bonds
with the aggregate principal amount of approximately
HK$111,238,000. The bond holders are entitled
to convert such bonds into ordinary shares at a
conversion price of HK$0.45.

Conversion may occur at any time between 22
December 2018 and 20 December 2020.

The management appointed independent qualified
professional value, Ascent Partners Valuation Service
Limited to split the normal value of the convertible
bonds between the liability component and the equity
component, using Black-Scholes Partial Differential
Equation Model, at initial recognition.

The convertible bonds contain two components:
liability and equity elements as follows: The equity
element is presented in equity heading ‘convertible
bonds equity reserve’.

RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H ' &AQF
#17111,238,0008 L2 T E A AR (E
%5 A BEAR111,238,0008 T ©
BEHFHEAGRUEREC4SETLHZ
ZEHFEREBR -

ﬁ?ﬁlﬂ\:;—)\iﬂ—_ﬂ_ﬂ—_ﬁi
TR CERFT AT HYEERRE
A -

EREREREBE LS EREEMGEMITT
FHERE A R R RV 2 HER I (£ A
N — &R ETR M 75 iR AR EL (Black-
Scholes Partial Differential Equation
I\/Iodel)H#—HﬁHXff%Z BEESFR
EEj &*“*/\\4

T?ﬁwi%‘%aﬁfﬁflﬁﬂmﬁﬁi LB R
RO (RTX) - HHMBHRN [k
BREEFERFEEIZ

HK$’000
FET
Equity component at date of issuance RETHBRE=E—-N\F+H=+—8H
and 31 December 2018 2wy 3,091
Liability component at date of issuance RBETEHE-ZE—-—N\F+H=1+—H
31 December 2018 ZBEH 93,568
Total st 96,659
EMNEEFER)ER AR - \FER

139



745 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE

' " 22. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 22 BHEHESHE
' A motor vehicle of the Group was under finance lease — WA EFERSERBEMERENKS
at the end of the reporting period. The interest rate is HARAR - ARy T ABEFE25%(—
fixed at 2.5% per annum (2017: 2.5%). T—+4F :25%) o

Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

RiEHE mEEEZHE
2018 2017 2018 2017

—®-\F ~TtF ZB-AE —T L%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHL  Ten TR TR

Amounts payable under RERENRE

finance leases: (NG
Within one year —FR 330 330 300 300
After one year but —Fi%
within two years BRMFEA 248 330 225 300
After two years but within -~ &
five years BRAEFA - 248 - 225
Less: Future finance B RREER
charges 53 83
Present value of lease MOBREZRE
obligations 525 825
Less: Amount due for B AR —EREE
settlement within one Z IS B E
year (shown under B&E)
current liabilities) 300 300
Amount due after one year —~ — & 5| HI 7 ZIB 225 525
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. Ir&
Number of
shares Amount
BBEE &8
HK$'000
FET
Authorised (Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each):  #F A (BREE010BT 2 LREK) :
Balance at 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, R-ZE—+E—F—H -
at 1 January 2018 and at 31 December 2018 ~ —E—+&+-A=+—-H -
RZE-\F-A-AK
RZE-N\FTZA=T—Hz#&# 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid (Ordinary shares of BETRARRA(BRABI0ETL
HK$0.10 each) EER)
Balance at 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, R=ZE—+F—f—H -
at 1 January 2018 and at 31 December 2018 ~ —E—+F+-A=F+—H "
RZE-\F-A-HK
RZE-\F+-A=ft—-Hz&% 1,761,825,563 176,183
EMNEEFER)ER AR ZE-)\FER
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745 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE

' " 24. RESERVES 24. &
Convertible
Share Capital Translation ~ bonds equity ~ Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ThRES
Riria® EXif ER R EhiE githR st

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK§ 000
TAL TR TR TR TAL ThL

At January 2017 R-3-+£-5-B 304371 26,00 (372) - 1416,038) 189369
Loss for the year LEEER - - - - (40872 (40872
Exchange diffrence arisingon B85 EHES

translation of foreign operations B} £ - - (891) - - (891)
Total comprenensive loss for the year A5E 2 EEELE - - (891) - (40872 (41763)

Acauistion of additonalinterests in -~ WEBI B F] 2 E5MER

subsidries - - - - (15,8%4) (15834
At 31 December 2017 and RZE-+E+2A
at 1 January 2018 =+-BR
“T-\-A-A 304,371 26,020 (4619 - T2.744) (146,966)
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - (57,383) (57,383)
Exchange difference arisingon &85 £ 7
translation of forsign operations B 2 - - 914 - - 914
Total comprenensive loss for the year A5 2 EEELE - - 914 - (57,383) (56,469)
Recognition of the equity BATRRESR,
component of the convertible  E& A
bonds - - - 3,091 - 3,091
At 31 December 2018 R-F-\Et+ZR
zt-8 304371 2,020 (3,699) 3,001 (530,127) (200,344)
Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman BEFSHBEQARAERIAR)  Bih&
Islands, share premium, capital redemption B BARABLOHELESRESAHSIK
reserve and contributed surplus are distributable FHRE - ERTHERT - KRARTE
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the FERIORTRE - kAR EE - EX
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a ERFERESRAMMEL DI

distribution out of share premium, capital redemption
reserve and contributed surplus if:

(i) it is, or after the payment be, unable to pay its () BRIRDREREELEEINHE
liabilities as they become due; or &%

(i) the realisable value of its assets would be (i) EEBEEZAEZREERAMBAEER
thereby less than the aggregate of its liabilities HeFHEETRAR 2B -

and its issued share capital account.
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25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESERVES (Cont’d)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the Ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the aggregate of
the share capital and share premium of subsidiaries
acquired through an exchange of shares as at the date
of the group reorganisation and the waive of loans by
a related party on 1 February 2004.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising on translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 3(u).

SHARE OPTIONS
The Company does not currently have any employee
share option scheme in effect.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Balances and transactions between the Company
and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the
Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and
are not disclosed in this note. In addition to those
disclosed in other notes to the consolidated financial
statements, details of transactions between the Group
and other related parties are as follows:

(@ Amount due to a director, Xie Xuan, of
approximately HK$2,717,000 (2017:
HK$3,404,000) is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and is not due for repayment within the
next twelve months.

(b)  Amount due to substantial shareholder, Asian
Dynamics International Limited, of approximately
HK$17,305,000 (2017: HK$24,544,000) is
unsecured, interest bearing at the annual rate of
5% and is not due for repayment within the next
twelve months.

Interest paid and payable to the substantial
shareholder for the year amounted to
approximately HK$1,126,000 (2017:
HK$1,194,000).

24,

25.

26.

e ISR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

(&)

REBZ ARREIESARERTE
AR AERRNEREMAY B EBRN
ARHG BB I R ) 2 RS T B 1
B ARBEAIR -TTOF-A—
ARRERZEHE -

EXFEHEEEMAERREBINER M
BHREAAEEZENZ5 - L AREN
AEB(U)FT RS 2 SRR R BRI

RERRIE
ARRBRAEEBR B TREARES

g -

EXFAEANLRS
ARFEEKBAR(R/AREZE
AL ZHEBERHERGAKBERT
AMIE - B RRAM EABEE - BRiER
BUBHRREMMESEREEN A
SEEREMBBEALTZRZFHBENT

@ ENEFHBEZREDA
2,717,000 B T (Z T — L & :
3,404,000 7T ) T EEA - 2 B
MBERARRA2(E A NEE -

(b) FE fF £ E A% ® Asian Dynamics
International Limited 5% B #) &
17,305,000 8 Tt (=T — £ & :
24,544,000 7T ) TH BRIk
LE5%ET ERBHFERARKI2(E A A

Pz -

FRBEMNEREMNEZERR ZFE
491,126,000/ 0( —F—tF
1,194,000/&7T) °

SNEEFEBR)ARAH “E-N\FEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26. EXEEANTR S5 (Z)

(Cont’d)

(c) The remuneration of directors and other ) SHEFZFREMFZEEEXERTF
members of key management during the year is ANZEHEMIOT :
as follows:
2018 2017
—B-\F ~TtF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FETT
Short-term benefits FEHARE R 1,746 1,580
1,746 1,580

The remuneration of directors and key executives
is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

REERTETBRABZHMIMH
FHZEEREESAZKELRD

LBBRERE -

27. COMMITMENTS 27. XiIE

Operating lease commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

EERERR

R B - A AR IR T B AE
MEARBESN 2 RIKHERALHE
m -

2018 2017
—EB-N\E —ZT—+F
HK$’°000 HK$’000

FHERT FET

Within one year —FR 2,288 1,167
After one year but within five years —FEERAEERN 1,688 1,628
3,976 2,795

The Group’s operating leases are for terms of 1 to 5
years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE-F \F1-A=1-BULEE
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. HIIEITH
Categories of financial instruments (a) BEABIRZE7
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#IT FETT
Financial assets MBEE
Available-for-sale investments HHERSE - 769
Financial assets at fair value through A FEFAEMEE
other comprehensive income Wtz B EE 769 -
Loans and receivables Bk B AR
Amount due from JER—RIIREH R
an investee company NAFIB 538 109
Amounts due from associates A NETE O] 2,738 2,722
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E A E BRI 40,774 39,166
Cash and bank balances Re MIRIT4E 6,989 11,486
51,808 54,252
Financial liabilities HEaE
At amortised cost bi7g: Fi= DN
Trade and other payables m%&ﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁ BRX 53,061 133,283
Amounts due to associates XN RSN | 1,361 980
Amount due to a director FE— %i%, 2,717 3,404
Amount due to substantial EEHEEH&??KIE\
shareholder 17,305 24 544
Convertible bonds payable JE S AT AR B H BUIR 93,568
Obligation under finance leases BMEMEEET 525 825
168,537 163,036
TMEE (=) BRAR] T \FER
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HE-F—\F

(b)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

ToA=+—HLFE

" 28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management and policies
Details of the Group’s financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

(i)

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

The Company’s functional currency is Hong
Kong dollar and the functional currencies
of the majority of the subsidiaries are Hong
Kong dollar and Renminbi. The Group’s
transactions, trade receivables and trade
payables are mainly denominated in these
currencies.

Entities within the Group are exposed
to foreign exchange risk from future
commercial transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency. However, as the
net foreign exchange exposure is not
significant, the Group does not actively
hedge this foreign exchange exposure
and no foreign currency risk sensitivity is
disclosed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies
(Cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

The Group periodically reviews monetary
assets and liabilities held in currencies other
than the functional currency to ensure that
net exposure is kept at an acceptable level,
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risks

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk
relates primarily to fixed rate borrowings
from substantial shareholder (see Note 26)
and obligations under finance leases (see
Note 22). The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk relates primarily to bank balances
(see Note 19). The management considers
the Group’s exposure of the bank balances
to interest rate risk is not significant as they
have a short maturity period.

Credit risk management

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties, is the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In 2018, the Group provides services to its
customers on cash on delivery.

In order to minimise the credit risk in
relation to trade and other receivables,
the management has strengthened the
credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the management reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the management considers that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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28. MBI R(AE)
(b) BARSEMEERBIR(E)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZT-N\F

ToA=+—HLFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management and policies

(Cont’d)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

745 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

28. MBI R(A)
(b) BARSEMEERBIR(F)

(ii) Credit risk management (Cont’d) (i) EEEBEEE)
The credit risk on liquid funds is limited mEEeZEERBAR
because the majority of the counterparties ITERNRESHFTITERE
are reputable banks or banks with high FENERREETREE
credit ratings assigned by international BT EET R RIT -
credit-rating agencies.
For internal credit risk management, the BT CERKRESEMS -
management periodically reviews the EREETrHEMBE QAR R
financial information of the associates WEHERANTINIEER -
and investee company to assess whether DEIhizERBE L @EE
credit risk has increased significantly. Mme BEFERE  ZEHREHN
The directors consider the ECL on these JEHEEEEBY TE AKX -
balances are not significant.
Debtors’ aging EHA 2 BREe
As part of the Group’s credit risk EAREBEZERKREIE—
management, the Group uses debtors’ oy REBFEHEHEAZ
aging to assess the impairment for its RRITHEERNERERFZ
customers in relation to its consultancy HE RRAZSEFPEAR
operation because these customers share HRRREES  MZEESR
common risk characteristics that are FEREEPRESNERI
representative of the customers’ abilities 2ERNEFIB 2L N - TK
to pay all amounts due in accordance with REEEENR_Z—NF+=
the contractual terms. The following table A=+—BREEEERER
provides information about the exposure to B NTEHI (= E B R 5T
credit risk for trade receivables which are 2B ZEKERER (AW REIR
assessed based on provision matrix as at ZERE)ZERRER -
31 December 2018 within lifetime ECL (not
credit-impaired).
Gross carrying amount REAEE
Average Trade Loss
loss rate receivables allowance
FHEEE EHEKRR BEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET
Current (not past due) BIEA (I A HH)
1-30 days past due BHEIE30K 5% 7,813 394
31-60 days past due BHIB1E60K - - -
61-90 days past due BHIB1Z 90K - - -
More than 90 days past due  #HIEIEI0K 20.2% 22,049 4,446
29,862 4,840

Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE TS ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE-_T- \F+ZA=+—HLFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 28. MBI A(EZ)

(b) Financial risk management and policies (b) HMAEEMEERBIK(E)
(Cont’d)

(ii) Credit risk management (Cont’d) (i) BEERGEEE)

Debtors’ aging (Cont’d) BN 2 AR (&)

The estimated loss rates are estimated
based on historical observed default rates
over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or
effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information
about specific debtors is updated.

The following significant changes in the
gross carrying amounts of trade receivables
and contract assets contributed to the
increase in the loss allowance during 2018:

- origination of new trade receivables
net of those settled resulted in
an increase in loss allowance of
HK$2,538,000;

- increase in days past due over 30
days resulted in an increase in loss
allowance of HK$Nil;

- a write-off of trade receivables with a
gross carrying amount of $2,500,000
resulted in a decrease in loss
allowance of HK$300,000;

BAERERBEBEER
BERABRFRZEORMG
it WHBBEBRRARIA
ZTFEAHER AT
BEHPE - EBET SR
D EREEFFEED
ANZHEEEH -

LT BEH =T~ \FER
9B 1 0 2 5 B
BRANEEYFEREY
EAED :

- HEZIEWREIRC
EE B ZRWERR
R R A B
2,538,000/ T :

—  HHRBIOX Y KEE
P B R T

BT

—  WSEERT421E2,500,000
BILZ E 5 R WK
BHEBEBEBEERD
300,000/ 7T :
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

C BEZT)N\FTZA=T—HIFE

" 28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management and policies
(Cont’d)
(ii) Credit risk management (Cont’d)
The following table shows the movement
in lifetime ECL that has been recognised

NCIAL STATEMENTS

28. MBI R(&E)
(b) BARSEMEERBIR(E)

(i) fEEmPEEE(E)
TRETREGB T AER
ZEZRWERZ BRATE

for trade receivables under the simplified HZEERY
approach.
Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)
HRAFEREERE(EREREERE)
HK$’000
FHET
As at 31 December 2017 N==—t&F+=A
under HKAS 39 =+—HB - Rig
FEEHERIE395% 2,433
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS O [ Fi 75 /% B 7% 3R 45 % A
FOTRIE 2 -
As at 1 January 2018 nN=—=-N\F—H—H
- As restated —EE5| 2,433
— Impairment losses recognised —EHRRREEE 2,538
Exchange difference b5 =58 (131)
As at 31 December 2018 N=F—-N\E+=A=+—H 4,840

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies

(Cont’d)

(ii) Credit risk management (Cont’d)
The following table shows the movement
in lifetime ECL that has been recognised
for other receivables under the simplified
approach.

Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)
HRR M TEHIEEESE (HIRIEERE)

e ISR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

28. MBI R(&E)
(b) BARSEMEERBIR(E)

(i) EEEMRGEE(E)
TRETREGB T AER
Z E A U AR R BIIR A TR

HEEBEES -

HK$’000
FHT
As at 31 December 2017 N==—t&F+=A
under HKAS 39 =+—8 - RiE
EHE G ERIE395R 17,267
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS O [ Fi 25 /% B 7% 3R 45 % A
FOFIE AR -
As at 1 January 2018 N=—F—N\E—H—H
- As restated —EE5| 17,267
— Impairment losses recognised —EHRRREEE 787
Exchange difference b =58 (102)
As at 31 December 2018 N=F—-N\E+=A=+—H 17,952
TMEE (=) BRAR] - \FER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE

‘ " 28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 28. MBI A(EZ)
' (b) Financial risk management and policies (b) HMAEEMEERBIK(E)

(Cont’d)

(ii) Credit risk management (Cont’d) (i) BEERGEEE)
At the end of the reporting period, RFEEHR BEERBLEE
HK$11,390,000 (2017: 5,760,000) and B 258 5 289D Bl FE W AN &
HK$7,594,000 (2017: HK$16,177,000) of SRAEBEPRE_ARRF
the total trade and other receivables was (ZE2E—+F : ZKEF)
due from the group’s largest customer and B9 LREMEWREDRS &
the second largest customers (2017: three 11,390,000 8 Tt (=& — &
largest customers) respectively within the £ : 5,760,000 & T ) &
management and consultation business 7,594,000 L (=& —
segment. F 116,177,000/ 7T) °

(iii) Liquidity risk management (i) REIELEREE
In the management of the liquidity risk, REFBEEBRSHESREE
the Group monitors and maintains a level B 2ERBLNIRESEE
of cash and cash equivalents deemed MK BEHREEEESE
adequate by the management to finance ERAEEBZKFE - LABH
the Group’s operations and mitigate the KNANRZEERAE - WD
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The BeEneENs 8 o 37
Group relies on issuing of shares and R RREBEALZEE
borrowings from related parties as a RANEEZEZEEL KR -

significant sources of funding.

The following tables detail the Group’s TRAVWAEB 2B EEE
remaining contractual maturity for their R TAYNTEER HEE
financial liabilities which are based on R EEZRBBERSR
the undiscounted cash flows of financial ENAEBABKERERZ
liabilities and the earliest date on which the xFHEMmME -

Group can be required to pay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b)

Financial risk management and policies
(Cont’d)
(iii) Liquidity risk management (Cont’d)

e ISR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-N\F+-_A=+—HIFE

28. MBIR(A)
(b) BARSEMEERBIR(E)

(i) FEELEIFEEE(E)

More than

Ondemand 3 months Total
or less than but less undiscounted Total
Imonths  thaniyear  Morethan  cash flows carrying
BEXS  CEANE 1year iR amount
DRZER  EOR-5  BE-F RERESE  KEYE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
2018 Z5-0\% TEn TEnL TEn TEn Thn
Trade and other payables 25 &Hﬁtfﬁﬁf 53,061 - - 53,061 53,061
Amounts due to associates ERBELT 1,361 - - 1,361 1,361
Amount due to a director FEft— %ﬁ% - - M7 2,17 2,111
Amount due to substantial shareholder R TEREZE - - 17,305 17,305 17,305
Convertible bonds payable HWHXF%TAIE - - 111,238 111,238 93,568
Obligations under finance leases gﬁﬁ EEff 83 47 248 518 525
54,505 47 131,508 186,260 168,537

017 ZFtF

Trade and other payables EAREHERE 27142 106,141 - 133,283 133,283
Amounts due to associates ERBELTHNE 90 - - 980 90
Amount due to a director 3 %%% 7 - - 3,404 3,404 3,404
Amount due to substantial shareholder ERTERETE - - 24 544 24,544 24 544
Convertiole bonds payable EfTaRER A - - - - -
Obligations under finance leases BEHEER 83 U7 518 908 825

28,205 106,388 28,526 163,119 163,036

In the opinion of the directors, the Group
should have adequate resources to meet
its obligation in the forthcoming year
on the basis set out in Note 3(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

E=ZAR RERSMBR
RIFEES(C) B 2 B - K
SEBEERTERNRERE
TEEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE

‘ " 28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 28. MBI A(EZ)
' (c) Fair values (c) AFE

The directors of the Company have considered AKARESREMEBEUVBEERA
that the carrying amounts of all financial assets EEEEEREN T N\F+=
and liabilities, approximate their fair values at 31 A=+—HEZZ—+tF+=A
December 2018 and 31 December 2017. —tT—HZAFEMRE -

The following table sets out the carrying value of TREVNIRZAFEAEZHHEITA
financial instruments measured at fair value at 31 RZE—N\F+_A=+—HK
December 2018 and 31 December 2017 using —E—+tF+_A=1t—HZKHA
the three-level hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13. B BB (FEEEEMBRREEDSE

135 SE 2 = AR AR -

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F—E: EEN:t= A ER
markets for identical assets or ZHRAEESBEZE
liabilities that the entity can access at BHigmE(RKHEHE)

the measurement date;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices FE:-BRE—EBEZMBRER
included within Level 1 that are Gy BESBEBEZEE
observable for the asset or liability, DALEZICIR RS NE |
either directly or indirectly; and % &

Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the FZE: BEREBZTUER
asset or liability. B A BUR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE-_T- \F+ZA=+—HLFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 28. MBI A(EZ)

(c) Fair values (Cont’d) (c) AFEE)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B 5-E $ZE st

HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TR TAT THT

2018 —2-N\F
Recurring fair value measurement & E 1A FE 2
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value BLATEGFAEME
through other comprehensive A BB EE
income
2017 —TtF
Recurring fair value measurement & %14 A FEz 8
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value BAFEAEMLE
through other comprehensive EhaHBEEE

income

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.

The fair value of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income as at 31
December 2018 has been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out by Ascent Partners
Valuation Service Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers not connected to the Group,
using Cost model.

At 31 December 2018, if the equity price
had increased/decreased 10% with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s investment
revaluation reserve would be increased/
decreased by approximately HK$76,900.
The 10% increase/decrease represents
management’s assessment of the likely
maximum change in equity price over the period
until the end of next annual reporting period.

- 769 769

BE_Z-\Ft+_-_A=t—H8BEK
T+ +A=+—HIF
T EBRE_EZELTEE
% E-BRE_EBITEEARE
HE=ZE - AEBBRRERSH
R D FHERE 2 REERRER
EALR

AT N\F+ZA=+—H2Z&
NPEFAREEKE 2 MBE
EZAFEIHBYAERERM
BT EZAER AR (BX
SEEBE) RAKRANEIELZ
fHEmED -

RoZE—NE+=-A=+—RH &
EEEMASERZEFTIE M
BEE EF T #10% @ BIAEE
ZEREHEREBE N SRDLH
76,9007 70 © EFF T BR10% 45
EEENEREREE T —REEE
WMEARCHBAMRELERE 2 &S
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

L. BESE\RTSASHoALSE
‘ " 29. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 29. EXEHE
' The Group manages its capital structure and makes REESIPEHE AL - N FEFELHE IR
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic M7 S ERNEBIEL AL - 54
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, NI BRENEE AR EESXLS A
the directors of the Company may adjust the YR FIRECIREHE - REFREE
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to KEBETHRGD - REBE-_T—N\EK
shareholders and issue of new shares. No changes —E—+HF+-"A=+—BHItEERXN -
were made in the objectives, policies or processes EHEE -  BEREFEIETE o
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, REFEFNAEEAGB RRLERENG
which is net debt divided by the total capital plus net o BEEFTEBRUNRER NG EF
debt. Net debt includes trade and other payables, W ABEFEREE S NHEMENE
amounts due to associates, amounts due to a director T ENBEANTIRE  EN—RES
and shareholders, convertible bonds payable, and RIEEZIE - ERNAIRRESZIE LR
obligations under finance leases less cash and cash EHESHE BESERBELSZEW - &
equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to the NBIERNBEG AN IEFE P 5 (L
owners of the Company and non-controlling interests. z  c RNEBHAZEEAGBL RN
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period T
are as follows:
2018 2017
ZB-N\EFE —ZT—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TATT
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERRR 53,061 133,283
Amounts due to associates JEASH B 2 A B FRIE 1,361 980
Amount due to a director N —2EENIE 2,717 3,404
Amount due to substantial FE £ BRI KIA
shareholder 17,305 24,544
Convertible bonds payable JET AT AR E S IR 93,568 -
Obligations under finance leases BEHREST 525 825
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BekReEED (6,989) (11,486)
Net debt BEFR 161,548 151,550
(Capital deficiency)/equity attributable to: T 5I| A +fE(E (B ARE4LL)
R
— owners of the Company - VNEIEZ PN (24,161) 29,217
— non-controlling interests — JEIE AR RE RS (1) (1)
(Capital deficiency)/total equity (BANEA) /HarEzs (24,162) 29,216
Capital and net debt BEARARBEFHE 137,386 180,766
Gearing ratio BEEAMELE 117.59% 83.84%
156 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 8 November 2017, the Group entered into an
agreement, pursuant to which the Group agreed to
acquire 100% equity interest of BN EE T EE H
R A 7] (now known as 2 BB (EM) X(LEEE
(R A &]) at cash consideration of RMB500,000 from
independent third parties (the “Acquisition”). The
Acquisition was completed on 20 November 2017.

EREH(EMN)XtEREBRAF is a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC and its principal
activity is provision of traditional media and internet
media content production management services
and media content design services. The directors
of the Company consider that the Acquisition will
diversify the Group’s business management services
to penetrate into the traditional media and the rapidly
growing internet media industry which will broaden the
revenue sources of the Group.

The recognised amounts of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
Acquisition are as follows:

e ISR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

30. £ E1H#

RZE—tF+—ANB  AKBEF
—MtE - Bt - AEEREUARE
500,000t 2B E&NRE - MBILE=F
KEENERRESERAR(EREA
EREEH(BMN)EFBERAA) Z
100% R4 ([ WEEIE]) - WEFIED
RZE—tF+—AZ+HZEK -

ERES (BN XEEERARARN
FEEMKIZBERAR G MEXTEXE
BREHENEBLEBAEEZAR
SUEE R MEBADRARE - K
REEFERR WEFEKZTLER
REBEEBEERY - S RES
BRANIERA R BB EERITE
e 2P AN 5 B 2 W sk 5O -

FTUCEE m] 38Rl & B M AR 2 2 BIETR IR
BERAHZCHERSENAT

HK$’000
T T
Non-current assets FERHEE
Property, plant and equipment ME  BENKE 170
Current assets RENEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H M REUERR 3,918
Cash and cash equivalent RekReEFEY 30
Current liabilities RBHERE
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEMERERR (5,867)
Net liabilities assumed iz afEF5 (1,749)
TMEE (=) BRAR] T \FER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE

~ 30. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont’d)

Goodwill arising on Acquisition is calculated as follows:

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. ¥B8HE)

WEEEMELZEBEFESTAWT :

HK$’000

FATT

Total consideration BRE 591
Add: net liabilities assumed NE  PTREZAEFRE 1,749
Carrying amount of goodwill 27 REE 2,340

Goodwill arose on the Acquisition because the
business potential of the acquired subsidiary can
provide traditional media and internet media content
production management services and media content
design services in the PRC.

None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for
tax purpose.

R P U B B B8 2 R AT R R B R R (E A
e N BRI Y WA RUFE RS
REBEBATRTRG 2 EHEN - K
BERELRE -

BE B BRI SRS B HOF0R

Net cash outflow on Acquisition W B =R1E v BE 4 n
HK$’000
F#ETT
Consideration paid on cash ENRERE (591)
Add: cash and cash equivalent acquired NE  PTIREEIRS &
ReFEEYD 30
(561)

The Acquisition contributed revenue of HK$983,000
and decreased net loss of HK$591,000 to the Group
from the date of acquisition to 31 December 2017. If
the Acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2017, the
revenue and loss of the Group would have increased
by HK$8,883,000 and increased by HK$1,489,000
respectively.

The gross contractual amounts of trade and other
receivables as at the date of Acquisition were
HK$3,918,000, which amounted to HK$633,000 are
not expected to be collected.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

. COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 31. ASMEIRRAE
POSITION
2018 2017
—T-N\E T —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EFEEE
Interests in subsidiaries B AR RS 113,663 179,375
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & E MR 903 106,943
Amounts due to subsidiaries R PNGIE =] 12,930 6,102
13,833 113,045
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RENBEFE (13,833) (113,045)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRHER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 99,830 66,330
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERHERE
Amount due to a director Bt — R EE A 69 69
Amount due to substantial JET £ ERR R FIE
shareholder 17,324 24,563
Convertible bonds payable FEAS AT AR B 5 R 93,568 -
110,961 24,632
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BfE) EEFH#E (11,131) 41,698
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRARGEE
Share capital f&% 2 176,183 176,183
Reserves (Note) & (fIRE) (187,314) (134,485)
TOTAL EQUITY pab i (11,131) 41,698

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 29 March 2019.

Xie Xuan
Director

Qiu Yue
Director

RZT-NF=ZA=-tTNhAESEEEH

JE R R TIE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 31. ASHERRAEKE)

POSITION (Cont’d)

Note: Wizt -
Convertible
Share  Contributed bonds equity Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
ThEES
Rt i(E EQRR e RitBRE @t
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FAL TAL THET FAEL FAL
At 1 January 2017 RIB—+&
-A—H 304,371 13,882 - (437,699) (119,446)
Loss for the year AEEBE - - - (15,039) (15,039)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F
and at 1 January 2018 +-A=+—8H
RZZ-N\%F
-A—H 304,371 13,882 - (452,738) (134,485)
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - (55,920) (55,920)
Recognition of the equity HEAR[AKES 2
component of the R
convertible bonds - - 3,091 - 3,091
At 31 December 2018 R=F—/\%+=H
=+-8 304,371 13,882 3,091 (508,658) (187,314)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the Ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the net asset value of a
subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares as at the
date of the group reorganisation.

At the end of the reporting period, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the Company did not have any
reserves available for distribution to shareholders of the
Company (2017: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

32. SUBSIDIARIES

HE-F-N\F

32. MIBATE

TTA=+—HLFE

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as FTEMBATHEBINOT :
follows:
Issued and .
fully paid Proportion of
share capital/ '"L”%s‘ held by
registered e Gompany
Place of capital FATREL
incorporation/ Form of BEIR ﬂ
Name operation legal entity @EKA,/ Directly Indirectly Principal activities
2 Hlbl EERE  EAERRA iftd4d EE EE IERH
Asian Information Resources The British Virgin International business US$200  100% - Investment holding
(BVI) Limited* Islands company 057 RELRK
ABRIEE Gl S N
Asian Information Resources Hong Kong Limited liability HK$ 11,228,290 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited 3 ARALLT 11,228 29070 REER
EMASERAT
Asian Information Resources Hong Kong Limited liability HK$2 - 100%  Investment holding and provision
Finance Limited S BEREELA 28T of treasure functions to group
companies
REREAEENARY
EBRH
Asian Information Resources Hong Kong Limited liability HK$2 - 100% Provision of administration
Investment Limited B EREAAT 2&T  senvices to group companies
REBRARETHRE
Asian Information Resources Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Marketing Limited Bk EREALA 10,000% REBR
Biztech Gompany Limited Hong Kong Limited liahility HK$100,000 = 100%  Investment holding
BENRARAT B BREMRA 100,000%7C REZR
Guangzhou Wavecom The PRC Limited liability RMB36,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Communications and hE BREMRA AR#36,000,0007C REER
Advertising Limited"
EMERERESARAA
ACR Capital Management Limited™ - Samoa Limited liability USS$1 - 100% Provision of business
EED EREALA %7 management and consulting
.. services in Asia Pacific region
REARRERHERR
ERRS
RTEREREERERAF  ThePRC Limited liability 1S$2,000,000 - 100% Provision of investment
hE EREALA 2,000,000%7 management and consulting

SNEEFEBR)ARAH

services

RHREEE RBRRE

“E\FER
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HE-F—\F

follows: (Cont’d)

32. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as

745 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
t-A=+—BLFE

32. MBAT(E)

FEMBATHEWOT - (&)

Issued and .
fully paid Proportion of
share capital/ u;:‘er%st held by
registered e Lompany
Place of capital FATiEL
incorporation/ Form of BETR it bl
Name operation legal entity @RERA/ Directly Indirectly Principal activities
28 GRSy Nt 5 s EE  HE IEER
Asian Capital Resources The British Virgin Limited liability US$100 - 100% Inactive
(PTC) Limited* Islands ERELAT 100%7T iikid-E
XBRAE
HElRREANLE The PRC Limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 100% Inactive
hE EREAAA AE10,000,0007 E S
2REY (BM) W ER The PRC Limited fiability RMB5,000 - 100% Provision of traditional media
ERAR (3R hE EREMAF AEH5,0007 and internet media content
BNERZRERRAR) production management
services and media content
design services
REEREEREREEER
AEEERRBRERAR
Fit R
TEHE (BM) RAF The PRC Limited fiability RMB13,000,0007C - 100% Investment holding and
hE EREALT AR 13,000,000 provision of internet
development and
maintenance services,
investment management
and consultancy services
REZRRBEIRBRER
BERY REEERER
%
B ERER AR The PRC Limited fiabilty RMB1,500,0007 - 100% Provision of travel services
hE EREALA AKEH1,500,0007 R KBRS
* Companies not audited by CHENG & CHENG * ZENF Y AR e MERS

LIMITED.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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33.

34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\GF+_A=1+—HILEFE

ASSOCIATES 33. BtE AT
Particulars of the associates are as follows: BEATIZHBNT :
Place of Issued and  Proportion of interest
incorporation/ fully paid ~ held by the Company
operation Form of share capital FATRF 2RI H Principal
Name B3 legal entity %7k  Directly Indirectly activities
&1 G2hE ENERRR HERE E& Bl TEEH
Best Concept Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10 - 40%  Property investment
BRHERERRR B BRRA 1087 NERE
ACR Singpoli Capital The British Limited liability US$100 - 50%  Inactive
Management Ltd. Virgin Islands
ABRAES  BRAA 100%7 BEH
ACR Sihai Capital Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1,000,000 - 50% Inactive
Management Limited B BRAF 1,000,000%7C mEH
APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 34. MEHmRZHLE

These consolidated financial statements were
approved and authorised for issue by the Company’s
Board of Directors on 29 March 2019.

hEREMBRREN_Z-NF=A
“HNBERARTREEFSH AL RET

%o

SNEEFEBR)ARAH “E-N\FEH

163



Q'L (eee'e) 1901 BB - Bl068 118 - 78%  Liee - utee o) - (194'72) fueduwog oy jo

/(BEVE)YE  sieunoay) o] aengue

YE¥eay  Amnba(fousyep yoe))

(6.l 08y (01'9) el - week oo - 049} | - | } - ! TRGEE  sisoie Bujoauoo-oy
Q70  loosyl 0L 08B - 0869wl - i e - augee  koyd) - (9K'72) 36 S1essesanliqel) o
(lozoo)  leos'se  (orweg)  leeme) - Boose)  lrc'sel - lrses  loeogr) - bzo'on  (gev'eLy) - (86921 EEE SaIgeY ei0]
Wres w9 egler S8y - w8y oe90r - 6oz Skl - ol o - oLz'8hh ¥ 18532 BI0]
HEYEE  sonyigel pue sjassy

lBog1H  (gg'el  9ge) brg't) - et (2 - begd g - o legg'e) - (68626 %/ (24 fueduiogy 8} 10 ouno
EENEEENA GIOE VAT

WL oeryeh 6es YA log'te e - l9e 090w - w0 oo - 00852 ol anuatey

] Sj|nsay

Ygd o Ty gt gy Ty Ty Yy Ly g 1§y Iy Y 1Ry IR I
WOSH  00SH  D0SH  0OSH  00SH  00SH  0ODH  00SH  00SH  00ODH  000SH  000SH  00SNH  OOSHH  000SHH
i §28%  fxEE £8 0 R BEE & CECT I EET I §EE0 f8 WHIEF  REH

Sie

% g % g % g % g T3 B4
PIO| suoessdo  Suoneido  [el0] suoelsdo  suojeido  ejog suomesiedo  suofeisdo  [e10] suonesedo  suorelsdo ey suonesado  suonesado
panujuoosiq  Bumuiuon panupuoasq  Bumunuon penuuoosiq  Bununuog panuuoosig  Bumuguog panuiuodsiq Bumunuoy
-5 I-g- V-g= ERSS B\-§-
70e Gl0C 9100 1107 8102

'S]UBWISILIS [BIOUBUI) palpne 8yl Jo 1ed 10u sI Arewiwins

o LR EWEA AR AL S - 2 SIYL "sieak anjoadsal sy} JO sjuswale)s [elouBUl P1epl|osuod paysiignd s,dnoi ey}
WHHSHZ R DB HUBIE LY S - BHWEHE  Wol pajoelxe se ‘siesk [eloueul el 1se| 8y} Joj dnotp sy Jo sisaislul Buljjoijuoo
NE Y  HE  BEZESMHEETFEHAESE M|  -uou pue saljljigel| ‘S}@sse ay] pue s}nsaJ 8y} sellewwns Mmojag INo 1es s|gel sy

Annual Report 2018

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

164






	COVER 
	CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
	REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
	BACK COVER




